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62 vanulaundu)nnmsanyae ui 934,492.14  (1,052,689.87) 892,594.98  (1,052,689.87)
63  40°ui 13 3,874,790,827.05 3,651,263,696.90 3,791,788,556.71 3,643,665,904.61
6.4 %aﬁﬁmm:@iﬂ%dwl,ﬁ'mﬁ’uimqmi 43,035,715.53 14,437,185.92 3,677513.89 6,759,755.55
65 nmAsuuaduiiuuazfunuiamlasims (25532,072.48)  21,591,220.93 = 13,825209.16  26,687,650.30
6.6  aldanawines 114,637,912.67  91,235,829.00  110,428,800.49  90,366,822.81
6.7 ﬂl’ILdlaNi’]ﬂ’] 5,218,232.78 6,034,247.39 4,773,150.63 5,923,402.76
6.8  A1AAMINY BT 19,225,460.03  21,113,568.63 9,557,098.90  18,703,100.50
6.9  ednsmig uninwdlaiddau 120,164.39 72,596.43 109,826.01 70,040.59
6.10 Autituiinazusms 38,921,386.49  36,862,217.57  38921,386.49  36,862,217.57
6.11 a1 9L 3umMIg 2,989,388.28 2,817,846.59 2,989,388.28 2,817,846.59
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WU e

3,930,709.81 1,193,265.96 3,305,040.56 1,047,675.92

Rurhnswens-aauning 286,076,857.47 107,739,886.78 =~ 277,091,167.63 100,552,697.70

RUAINEIAIT-NIZE 31870 190,072,517.13  103,667,888.28 = 181,023,655.15  99,477,839.08
WudnswAs-tsza 17,917,924.59 9,243,943.75 13,371.64 9,243,943.75
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JUNITRUTIN JUNITRHIANIZAANTT

L dl A
™ UN 31 TUNAN

2557 | 2566 2557 | 2556
gwiinisfinglsinne 164461826 850835566 164461826 859835566
Qﬂﬂﬁﬂ’liﬁ’l
Felslasurmuatss 436,079,619.22 536,688,756.06  435,574,419.20 536,688,756.06
NUMABATITE
1-30 ¥u 207,048,670.67 153,369,265.10  204,598,507.61 153,369,265.10
31-60 u 54,019,932.04 7,139.00  54,013,632.04 7,139.00
61-90 ¥u 1,818,991.80 180,326.00  1,815,061.80 180,326.00
91 Suifuly 202,079.98 82,848.00 202,079.98 82,848.00
o 700,813911.97 698,926,689.82 697,848,318.89 698,926,689.82
#in owil ¢ taz gy (17,590.00) (17,590.00) (17,590.00) (17,590.00)
Ao uisuiu (1,644,618.26)  (8)598,355.66)  (1,644,618.26)  (8,598,355.66)
gnwiinsfn- 699,151,703.71 690,310,744.16  696,186,110.63 690,310,744.16

o Jui 31 SuNAN 2556 U%ﬁﬁlmau“w%L‘%ﬂﬂ%aoiué“uﬁazvlﬁ%'uﬁﬁwﬁmﬂgnﬁﬁmiﬁw 273.43 A1UUN

v A 1Y ) a a 4 a ¢
sL‘ViLLﬂﬁuWﬂ']iW']m’ﬁﬂLwaLﬂJuwaﬂﬂizﬂiﬂ,uﬂqima'J\TL\‘I% WEADATNTUIATTINITWTE

10. gnwﬁ[ﬂsomsa “omunswane i yryganasidu- né

™ Uil 31 Sunau
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JUNTNUTIN JUNSNHIANIZAANIT

™ Uil 31 Sunau

2557 | 2556 2557 | 2556
gnwiilasense “mEansndneld “ganidnmin 110,183,088.15 100,855,753.66 ~ 110,183,088.15 100,855,753.66
#in seldmaniiendslalEsuann “WananmINy (61,885,656.84) (54,819,577.24)  (61,885,656.84) (54,819,577.24)

gnwﬁ‘[mmwm “swsunsndmeld “ygamstu
uiidsnuatszmeluniied (3,050,599.99)  (4,987,723.26)  (3,050,599.99)  (4,987,723.26)
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45,246,831.32
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45,246,831.32
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o Tuit 31 Funaw o Tuft 31 Sunan
2557 | 2556 2557 | 2556
Taliiin 1 9 3,859,244.77  5,972,951.52 3,859,244.77  5,972,951.52
wiunin 19 ualaiiins 1 17,369,117.44  14,224,161.84  17,369,117.44  14,224,161.84
diundn 5 3 duly 88,954,725.94  80,658,640.30  88,954,725.94  80,658,640.30
EeH 110,183,088.15  100,855,753.66  110,183,088.15  100,855,753.66
11.  “uA1ALINED- n§
(e un)
o Fuft 31 Sunaw o Tuft 31 unan
2557 | 2556 2557 | 2556
"Lmérwﬁm?{aumaxqﬂnszﬁ; Fu 1,121,072,876.10 1,016,294,258.22 1,115,984,155.23 1,016,294,258.22
a¢lnaiiadan 6,891,586.44  3,960,608.96 6,891,586.44  3,960,608.96
3 1,127,964,462.54 1,020,254,867.18 1,122,875,741.67 1,020,254,867.18
wan Aiilodunm uin i 966,544.90  3,368,594.65 966,544.90  3,368,594.65
Rty 1,128,931,007.44 1,023,623,461.83 1,123,842,286.57 1,023,623,461.83
$n m,?jmdam“uﬁmwa‘mm (4,624,469.41)  (4,809,772.82)  (4,582,572.25)  (4,809,772.82)
fuilauinin o (22,133,554.25) (21,013,758.70) ~ (22,133,554.25 (21,013,758.70)
N3 1,102,172,983.78  997,799,930.31 1,097,126,160.07 997,799,930.31

%5l “uq@i’uﬁ 31 §wnew 2557 nzﬂuu%ﬁﬂﬁN@m@nmmﬂﬂuﬂé’uﬁﬁLﬁ@gﬁmﬁ“uﬁﬂmuﬁﬂimmnu
wiar Sasaubuazsurlsmanuder Saawizianis Suau 934,492.14 U uaz 892,594.98 1N NAIAL

(T] 2556 : 1,052,689.87 1 Laz 1,052,689.87 U mwa"wéfm)

12.  [asomsmune “omsunswaialitgneld yrynganisidu

(hag : um)
JUNITRUTIN
2aAAYMAD 4aAAIMAD
o 4 o 4
™ N ™ un

31 fwnen 2556 | aa/3ulau vshe/lauaan | 31 Sunaw 2557

a1a13 17,897,474.97 - (9,26457527)  8,632,899.70
21M153EH NN 519 44,589,186.86  37,228,796.25 - 81,817,983.11
ANTNN Y NIINTEN 50,110,354.11 - (4,560,653.89)  45,549,700.22
panidfuang 747,42359  2,129,405.39 - 2,876,828.98

Eet 113,344,439.53  39,358,201.64  (13825229.16)  138,877,41201
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v 4 o 4
o Jud ™ Ui

31 fwnen 2556 |  a@osulan | Swshe/Tawsan | 31 Funew 2557

21aNg 17,897,474.97 - (9,264,57527)  8,632,899.70

ANTINH YW WEINIT 8,810,354.11 - (4,560,653.89) 4,249,700.22

EetY 26,707,829.08 - (13,825229.16)  12,882,599.92
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v
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e
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13.  [asonswismune onsunsweiiiovns

(w8 : Um)
% Tuft 31 Funaw o Tuit 31 Funaw
2557 | 2556 2557 | 2566

Fununanlasens (ena $19)

118,120,212.93 2,120,212.93 30,000,000.00 -
17,384,832.65  10,348,768.76 7,036,063.89 -

N ﬂ'wLﬁawammumﬂgaﬂ'ﬂm@miaﬂm

135,505,045.58  12,468,981.69  87,036,063.89 -
(2,144,982.62)  (2,144,982.62) - -

a

o

q

133,360,062.96  10,323,999.07 37,036,063.89 -
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14.  10UPIWEVAINAT"UAT - NS

(wvhag : un)
o Juft 31 Sunew o Fufi 31 Funan
2557 | 2556 2557 | 2556
NuagaNnie Ui 276,301,669.66 265,483,214.38  276,301,669.66 265,483,214.38
i euitenil ¢ ez gy (720,048.00)  (729,048.00)  (729,048.00)  (729,048.00)
ns 275,572,621.66 264,754,166.38 = 275,572,621.66 264,754,166.38

9

a Y a (%

a 1 ! v I a U I3 ! a ! v I a v dl £ % dl a . U
NUAERIARIAT UANTUNITAINETURINHRUIAN uﬂ'l(ﬂ’l&lLV‘IE]uvl.“ll“fl’mﬂ'liﬂ']ﬂﬂ(ﬁwmiﬂﬂmﬂE‘NﬂllNNEW]LLEWH 9]

Y

° ' o & A a ¢ a
ﬁl’mu’mi‘ﬂiﬂwmﬂaaummzqﬂﬂiML IN

15.  “unSwdmyuideudu - ns

(e un)
o Tuit 31 unaw o Tuft 31 unaw
2557 | 2556 2557 | 2556

midaseluiiy 342827126 518145121 341964054  5178,088.53

gnwﬁnau FIWINT 511,357.13 284,077.52 284,077.52 284,077.52

aldanaaneani 2,972,363.03 2,648,740.60 2,516,769.05 2,369,392.10

gl i yumanednedy 14,304,527.58  4,938938.76  14,273,620.75  4,938,938.76

aonidegnedy 12,246,262.72  9553,178.04  12219,293.74  9,553,178.04

fu9 260652526  2,204,866.24 1555867155  2,463,225.50

Rty 36,069,306.98  24,811,252.37  48,272,082.15  24,786,900.45

win Adtonil o ez gneldFey (190896.93)  (190,896.93)  (19089698)  (190,896.93)

fufiowil e”m:mzy-ﬁluq (339,077.52)  (339,077.52) (339,077.52)  (339,077.52)

nd 35,539,332.58  24,281,277.92  47,742,107.70  24,256,926.00
16. 1BUWINARANISIATUS:AU

(e un)

o Tuft 31 unaw o Tuft 31 Sunam
2557 | 2556 2557 | 2556

Rurhnswens-oanning 20,055,668.08  24,055,481.04  20,000,000.00  24,000,000.00

WNuAINFUIAT-U3zan 353,800,000.00 351,009,682.00  352,600,000.00 351,009,682.00

XLV 373,855,668.08 375,065,163.04  372,600,000.00 375,009,682.00

o Ui 31 FuaN 2557 way 2556 wuidurinsuesinedu uSEnihldidundnniwdendsziu  waanlasy

a & o a A v
AINTUINNTWNIRTELLAS DIDBNITY @Y]qulﬂa']'gvla'qﬂ.uﬂﬂ']ﬂl,ﬁ@ﬁla 23
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17. 1duavnuluuséngos

- o

a a o 1 dl I 1 dv
17.1 L\mamu‘luniwﬂaﬂwaﬂmwﬂumqﬂszmq 19007

WMTRRaNIENANTT @ Ui 31 Swaaw 2557 uas 2556

(vishae : HKD) (vishae = un)

nuiizEn B wnmaeu | NaRIEuaINY

Faussm nuaanzidiau Frseuan Sasaz (%) awIENAMU
TWZ INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 100 3,958,069.00

[

17.2 Quasulunisndasnaansdeuludszme dasil

(#wae 1 Un)

SUMINWANIZAANTT o N 31 Swanaw 2557 uas 2556

nuiizen B wmsanmu | wafduasu

4 aw o o v v aa
BAUIBN ‘qu’«mﬂzmﬂ‘u A1ITHA ERERH (%) ﬂ"l“')ﬁi"ﬂ"l‘n‘u

1B Twa msene An 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 100 3,000,000.00

MNTIBNUNTUITINAUNTINNTLIEN AT97 6/2556 LilaTun 16 fugnau 2556 usEmlddnAduwandunly
FAGIUTHN Aura IR NNa WuuSEnsas nua@ml,ﬁﬁu 3,000,000 1% 911423 300,000 #ub yasIvUAL
10 Un ﬁmu@lﬁﬁﬁwamuﬂixmm’éaﬂa: 100 I@ﬂﬁfzfmqﬂi: eﬁl,ﬁmﬂuégﬁmmﬂ Yndn kaz 9aan wiaw

NI IMaINIE i uddsmanlnsdwniedaud gunsall 3n eaanwamed uaz uddidnnsaiin Ty

USEN IAF1LHAUNNTIANZL T UAAAIUSENNNTENT I NI RBIWa2 b TUN 20 Auaneu 2556
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nneld 4,085,820,038.41  45,615,164.37 4,131,435,202.78
fonidedy 6,227,275.93  4,559,866.67  10,787,142.60
ponuilaang 82,582,731.74  7,333,286.49  89,916,018.23
A anmmuazedinsming 6,955,976.67  10,713,355.70 =~ 17,669,332.37
mls(anu e wunu 105,190,778.60  34,706,230.49  139,897,009.09
aldane(seld)mstuld 20,376,270.89 950,411.95  21,326,682.84

JUMTNUTIN

(han : 1)

eld

Tudszine 3,854,813,703.60  95,643,356.78 3,950,457,060.38

Aelszine 24,704,176.18 - 24,704,176.18
Tunels 3,879,517,879.78  95,643,356.78 3,975,161,236.56
panidiesu 6,616,376.04  4,298,228.37  10,914,604.41
panidiaang 98,704,192.94  4,503,003.31  103,207,196.25
At asmuazendindmse 8,466,230.86 2,320,520.52  10.786,751.38
mls(@anuves ueu 63,209,251.64  38,997,170.16  102,206,421.80
aldane(seld)mstuld 14,701,082.50 7,815,736.60  22,516,819.10
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3,033,317,031.38 2,603,442,197.37
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Message From the Board of Directors

P Y It N3 ijv’\ﬁ St

(Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri) L . A N4 (Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri)

Chairman > \ Chairman of Executive

Committee

To Shareholders

From the year 2014 to this past, it has started a great year for another year of the communication technology and
Telecommunications of Thailand that caused image widely used and more perfect respectively. After all camps of
service provider of 3G technology network with high speed internet has taken 3G signal to cover main areas
throughout the country. Consumers have a better understanding of Smartphone using benefits in daily life make
model of service providing in various many forms followed. From this incident, Consumers are needs to find device to
use. Especially model of smart phone which known as Smartphone are going to be key equipment almost everyone
hardly indispensable. So it is an opportunity of TWZ smart phone under concept of TWZ Smartphone for Everyone in
order to respond to consumers who want smart phone with good quality at a value price, available in both Hardware

and Application of all aspects in TWZ Smartphone.

Therefore the Company committed to develop business in all aspects with dedicated hard to keep the business

growth to provide a better return to Consumers and Shareholders so much more anyway.

www.twz.co.th
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Board of Directors

11 |Annual Report 2014
TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri

Chairman

Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri

Vice Chairman

Dr. Tippakorn Rungkasiri

Director

Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan

Director

Mr. Bandal Udol

Independent Director

General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee

Police General Aek Angsananont

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

Assoc. Prof. Pachara Pacharavanich

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee



TDVZ

CORPORATION

Management Team

1. Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri

Managing Director

2. Mr. Kittipong Kittipassorn

Vice President - Marketing and Business Development Department

3. Miss Nalinee Pratubsorn
Vice President - Human Resource Management Department

and Company Secretary

4. Miss Krissana Meungmor
Assistant Vice President - Sales Department

Acting Vice President - Sales Department

5. Miss Thitikarn Suksermsarn
Assistant Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

Acting Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

www.twz.co.th
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Directors

Name
Position
Shareholding

Education

Working Experience

lllegal Record in the

past 10 years

Name

Position

Shareholding

Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the

past 10 years
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and Management Team

Chairman
8.68%

Program

2014-Present
2013-Present
2013-Present
2001-Present
1992-Present
2012-2013
2010-2013
1993-2013
2009-2012
2007-2009
1991-2009
2004-2007
1999-2007
2003-2004
None

None

Program

2014-Present
2013-Present
2013-2014

2013-2014

2013-Present
2012-Present
2010-Present
2001-Present
1992-Present
1991-Present

None

Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri

Bachelor of Accounting and Commerce, Chulalongkorn University

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 41/2005

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Director of The Boxes Co., Ltd.

Chairman of TWZ Corporation Plc.

Director of Piyachat Co., Ltd.

Managing Director of F-One Auto Sport Co., Ltd.

Director of PC Cellular Co., Ltd.

Acting Vice President - Accounting Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Acting Vice President - Finance Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Vice Chairman and Managing Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.

Acting Vice President - Managing Director Office of TWZ Corporation Plc
Managing Director of Sam Corporation Co., Ltd.

Director of Piyachat Co., Ltd.

Managing Director of F-One Subaru (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Managing Director of TWZ Telecom Co., Ltd.

Chairman of Telewiz club

Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri

Vice Chairman, Managing Director

Bachelor of Arts, Faculty of Social Sciences Kasetsart University

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 41/2005

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Director of The Boxes Co., Ltd.

Vice Chairman and Managing Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Acting Vice President - Finance Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Acting Vice President - Accounting Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Director of TZ Trading Co., Ltd.

Director of RT Holding Co., Ltd.

Director of Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd.

Director of F-One Auto Sport Co., Ltd.

Director of PC Cellular Co., Ltd.

Director of Piyachat Co., Ltd.

www.twz.co.th
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Name

Position
Shareholding

Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the

past 10 years

Name

Position
Shareholding

Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the

past 10 years

Name

Position
Shareholding

Education

Working Experience

lllegal Record in the

past 10 years

Dr. Tippakorn Rungkasiri

Director

None

Doctor of Education in Educational Technology, Kasetsart University
Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 63/2005 and
Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 39/2005

Program

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
2013-Present Director of Piyachat Co., Ltd.
2005-Present Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.
2003-Present Assistant Dean for Administration & Instructor of Marketing,
Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University
2002-2003  Assistant Vice President of Premier Group

None

Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan

Director

None

M.B.A., University of Dallas, USA
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 43/2005
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
2013-Present Director of Piyachat Co., Ltd.

2005-Present Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.

1994-Present Director of Southern Palm Qil Industry (1993) Co., Ltd.

None

Mr. Bundal Udol

Director
None
Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical Engineering), Kasetsart University
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 41/2005
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
2013-Present Independent Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.
1991-Present Captain, Thai Airways International Plc.

2005-2008

None

Annual Report 2014
TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Director and Member of Executive Committee, TWZ Corporation Plc.
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Shareholding

Education

Working Experience

lllegal Record in the
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General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
None
Education Ph.D. (Public Administration),

Ramkhamhaeng University

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 84/2010

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Capital Market Academy Leadership Program, Capital Market Academy (CMA) Class 9
2014-Present Independent Director of Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Plc.
2013-Present Director of National Power Supply Plc.

2013-Present Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee of Solartron Co., Ltd.
2012-Present  Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2011-2012  Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2007-2008  Deference Inspector General
2005-2007  Commanding General of

Armed Forces Development Command
2003-2005  Special Expertise of the Royal Thai Army
None

Police General Aek Angsananont

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
None

Master of Law, Chulalongkorn University

Program Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 111/2008

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

2012-Present Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Plc
2011-Present Deputy Commissioner General (Legal Affair and Litigation), Royal Thai Police
2008-Present Committee, Property Management Office, Thai Red Cross Society
2008-Present Honorable Committee, Ramkhamhaeng University Council

2008-Present Committee, The Customs Committee on Setting the Case and

Waiving Prosecution, Thai Customs Department

2009-2014  Committee, Government Pension Fund

2009-2012 Independent Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2009-2010 Honorable Committee, Small and Medium Enterprises Promotion
Committee

None

www.twz.co.th
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Name

Position
Shareholding
Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the

past 10 years

Assoc. Prof. Pachara Pacharavanich

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

None

M.B.A. The University of North Carolina-Chapel Hill, NC, USA.

2014-Present

2014-Present

2013-Present

2013-Present

2013-Present

2013-Present

2013-Present
2006-Present

2006-Present

2006-Present

2003-Present

2011 - 2012
2010 - 2011

None

Annual Report 2014
TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Risk Management Sub-Committee

of Bangkok Mass Transit Authority (BMTA)

Academic Sub-Committee Head,

The Valuers Association of Thailand

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

of TWZ Corporation Plc.

Associate Dean for Graduate Studies, Faculty

of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University

Risk Management Committee,

Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University
Committee of Business Research Center,

Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University
Bangkok Property Valuation subcommittee, Department of Treasury
Associate Professor, Real Estate Business Department,
Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University
Development and Training Subcommittee,

The Valuers Association of Thailand Assessment

Committee for Key valuers, The Valuers Association

of Thailand and Thai Valuers Association

Joint committee to valuation development,

The Valuers Association of Thailand and Thai Valuers Association
Advisor to the Director General of the Treasury Department
Board of Director and Executive Committee

of Siam City Securities Company Limited
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Mr. Kittipong Kittipassorn

Vice President - Marketing and Business Development Department

None

Bachelor of Aviation Engineer (Communication), Civil Aviation Institution (Thailand)

Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 86/2010

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

2015-Present Vice President - Marketing and Business Development
Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2015-Present Director of TZ Trading Co., Ltd.

2012-2014  Vice President - Product Management and Marketing Department

of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2009-2012  Vice President - Product Management Department

of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2009-2009

2006-2009

Vice President-Sales Department 1 of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Assistant Vice President - Marketing and Business Development
Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2004-2006
2001-2004

General Manager of SIS DISTRIBUTION (THAILAND) PCL.
Deputy Managing Director of

THIRD WAVE EDUCATION CO.,LTD.

1999-2001 Managing Director and Partner of DECO DISTRIBUTION.,LTD.

None

Miss Nalinee Pratubsorn

Vice President - Human Resource Department and Company Secretary
None
Master of Science (Industrial Psychology) Kasetsart University
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 97/2012
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
2014-Present Company Secretary of TWZ Corporation Plc
2012-Present Vice President - Human Resource Department

of TWZ Corporation Plc.
2005-2012  Human Resource Manager of TWZ Corporation Plc
2001-2005  Training and Development Manager of Central Department Store Co., Ltd.

None
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Miss Krissana Meungmor

Assistant Vice President - Sales Department

Acting Vice President - Sales Department

None

Bachelor of Business Administration in Management Ramkhamhaeng University
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 116/2015

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

2015-Present Acting Vice President - Sales Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2012-Present Assistant Vice President - Sale Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2006-2012 Area Manager of TWZ Corporation Plc.
1997-2006 Branch Manager of PC Cellular Co., Ltd.
None

Miss Thitikarn Suksermsarn

Assistant Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

Acting Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

None

Master of Business Administration Sukhothai Thammathirat Open University
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 116/2015

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

2015-Present Assistant Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

Acting Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2012-2014  Assistant Vice President - Accounting Department
of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2004-2012  Accounting Manager of TWZ Corporation Plc.

2002-2004  Accounting of TWZ Corporation Plc.

None
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Financial Highlights

Unit: Million Baht

Finandial Performance 2012 2013 201457
Total Assets 2,397.77 3,039.49 3,558.24
Total Liabilities 1,673.51 2,235.13 1,322.23
Shareholders’” Equity 724.26 804.36 2,236.01
Sales and Services Revenues 3,669.35 3,879.52 4,085.82
Revenue from Real Estate Project for Rental under Financial Lease Agreement 17.38 92.84 45.62
Total Revenues 3,724.79 4,029.32 4,237.62
Gross Profit 227.85 335.54 343.79
Net Profit 3.63 79.69 118.57

Finandial Performance

Gross Profit Margin (%) 6.18 8.44 8.32
Net Profit Margin (%) 0.10 1.98 2.80
Returns on Equity (%) 0.50 10.43 7.80
Returns on Assets (%) 0.16 2.93 3.59
Debt to Equity (Times) 2.31 2.78 0.59
Book Value per share (Baht) 0.30 0.34 0.36
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General Information

Name

Nature of Business

Head Office

Registration No.

Home Page

Telephone No.

Fascimile No.

Paid-up capital

Share Registrar

Auditor
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TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited

Core business is a distributor of telecommunication devices which are mobile
phones, SIM cards, pre-paid cards, and accessories.

3/1 Building No. 1, 2" floor, Baanprachaniwet 1, Thetsaban Nimit Nue Road,
Ladyao, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900

0107574800285

www.twz.co.th

(66) 2954-3333

(66) 2954-3398

Baht 623,365,626.70

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited,

62 Rachadapisek Road, Kloengtoey, Bangkok 10110
Telephone (66) 2299-2800

Fascimile (66) 2359-1262

Miss Jintana Mahavanich

CPA No. 4687

C&A Accounting Firm

2210/51 Narativatrachanakarin Rd., Chongnonsee,
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120

Telephone (66) 2678-0750

Fascimile (66) 2678-0661
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Nature of Business

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited (“the Company” or “TWZ"), previously named “PC Communication and
Transports Company Limited.”, was established by mobile phone distribution experts, Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri, the
first mobile phone distributor to open retail shop at MBK center, with the initial paid up capital of Baht 1.00 million on

December 22, 1993.

The Company’s main business is selling mobile phone, SIM card and refilled card for Digital GSM Advance and
Digital GSM 1800 and other telecommunication devices. The Company was granted Telewiz franchise from Advance
Info Service Plc. (“AlS”) for selling goods and services under the trademark “Telewiz” for 21 branches and “Telewiz

Express” for 3 branches.

At present, the Company is the distributor of mobile phones “TWZ”. The Company has imported such products from
China to distribute under its own brand names. The consumer acceptance in products from China is increasing as
the products are cheaper and provide various functions that can serve consumers’ requirements. In order to build the
long-term partners and create the company product to be well-known. The company build a franchise under the
Trademark and Trade name “TWZ” for 6 branches. In the future, The company expects to be increase the number of
franchchise with original dealers. Besides, in order to have various mobile phones and accessories to serve all
customers’ needs, the Company is also the dealer of Wireless Device Supply Company Limited, M-Link Asia
Corporation Public Company Limited as well as purchases from other local distributors since each distributor is
granted exclusive right for specific models and brands. Since the Company is both distributor and dealer of various

brands of mobile phones, it has variety of products to response to all consumers’ demand.

The Company has seen the opportunity in the real estate development business, therefore, on March 11, 2008, the
Company entered into the leasehold right contract with the State Railway of Thailand on Rachadapisek Road for the
area of 6,126 square meters at the total value of Baht 88.30 million to construct Home Office building. Such site is at
the good location as it is close to the MRT -Ratchadapisek station. The leasehold right contract is for 24 years. The
site of the leasehold is on the good location; therefore, the Company expects the real estate project will bring more

income and profit to the Company.

As the Company’s business has been grown dramatically, it has to increase its paid-up capital consistently to support
its business. Therefore, the Company increased its paid-up capital from Baht 1.00 million to Baht 30.00 million, Baht
120.00 million and Baht 180.00 million in 2002-2004 respectively. Besides, in order to support its business expansion
in the future, the Company increased its capital from Baht 180.00 million to Baht 240.00 million in 2005 by issuing
60 million shares, at par value Baht 1.00 per share, and allocated 59 million shares to public and 1 million shares to
its directors and employees. The Stock Exchange of Thailand (“SET”) granted the Company’s common shares to be
traded on the SET commencing on 18 November 2005 under Information and Communication Technology Sector of
the Technology Industry, using “TWZ” as abbreviated name for trading. To be listed in the SET is one of the
Company’s successes as it enhances its reliability, strengthens its financial performance which make the Company

be more competitive in the industry. In order to increase the liquidity of its common shares, the Extraordinary
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General Meeting of shareholders No. 1/2008 on June 20, 2008 approved the Company to change its common share
par value from Baht 1.00 per share to Baht 0.10 per share. Therefore, the Company’s registered share capital was
changed from the registered share capital of Baht 240.00 million, divided into 240 million shares at par value of Baht
1.00 per share to the registered share capital of Baht 240.00 million, divided into 2,400 million shares at par value of

Baht 0.10 per share. The Company registered it new par value at the Ministry of Commerce on June 30, 2008.

On April 22, 2010, the Annual General Meeting no. 1/2010 approved the issuance of 600 million units of warrants for
its existing shareholders according to their shareholding portions. Therefore, the Company’s registered capital shall
increase from Baht 240.00 million to Baht 300.00 million, consists of 3,000 million shares at par value of Baht 0.10
per share. And on May 25, 2010, the Company was issued and offered the warrants of 599,999,987 units (TWZ-W1)
to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares to the existing shareholders in the proportion of 4 existing shares to 1
warrant unit, the offering price of Baht 0 per unit. TWZ-W1 is registered and transferable warrant and the term of
warrant is 1 year. The warrant holders shall exercise their rights under the warrants in the total of 2 times on
November 25, 2010 and on May 25, 2011, which is the last exercises date. The exercise ratio is 1 unit of warrant for
1 ordinary share and the exercise price is Baht 0.90 per share, with par value of Baht 0.10 per share. As at
December 31, 2010, the warrants have balance of 599,999,987 units. The Company allotted new shares to warrant
holders who exercised their rights to purchase common shares for 5 shares at the exercise price of Baht 0.90 per
share. Therefore, the issued and paid-up capital increased to be Baht 240,000,000.50 million (2,400,000,005
common shares, par value Baht 0.10 per share). As at May 25, 2011 which was the last exercise date, there were

599,999,982 outstanding warrants. Therefore, such warrants were expired instantly.

On August 26, 2013, of the extra-ordinary shareholders’ meeting no. 1/2013 approved to decrease registered capital
of the company from Baht 300,000,000.00 to Baht 240,000,000.50 by writing off 599,999,995 unissued shares at a
par value of Baht 0.10, totaling Baht 59,999,999.50. Noted that the unissued shares to be written off is registered to
cover thte warrants (TWZ-W1) issued to existing shareholders based on their shareholding proportion. The warrants
are expired on 25 May 2011. Approved to issue 1,028,571,431 units of warrants (TWZ-W2) for existing shareholders
at the ratio of 3 warrants per 7 common shares, with exercise price of Baht 0.40 per share. Approved to increase
registered share by Baht 102,857,143.10 composing of 1,028,571,431 common shares with par value of Baht 0.10
per share. Hence, registered share will be increased from Baht 240,000,000.50 to Baht 342,857,143.60 composing of
3,428,571,436 common shares with par value of Baht 0.10 per share. And approved to issue 1,028,571,431 common
shares to cover upcoming exercise of warrant (TWZ-W2) granted to existing shareholders at the ratio of 3 warrants

per 7 common shares, with exercise price of Baht 0.40 per share.

On August 26, 2013, of the extra-ordinary shareholders’ meeting no. 1/2013 approved decrease registered capital of
the company from Baht 342,857,143.60 to Baht 342,856,121.10 by writing off 10,225 unissued shares at a par value
of Baht 0.10, totaling Baht 1,022.50. Noted that the unissued shares to be written off is registered to cover thte
warrants (TWZ-W2). Approval of the issuance of 400,000,001 units of warrants (TWZ-W3) to be offered to the
existing shareholders to subscribe for new ordinary shares of theCompany according the proportion to subscribe.
Approval increase registered share by Baht 409,000,000.30 composing of 4,090,000,003 common shares with par
value of Baht 0.10 per share. Hence, registered share will be increased from Baht 342,856,121.10 to Baht

751,856,121.40 composing of 7,518,561,214 common shares with par value of Baht 0.10 per share.
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Besides, the extra-ordinary shareholders’ meeting no. 1/2013 approved purchase 49,998 shares of Piyachart
Co., Ltd., representing 100% of registered share capital, from former shareholders which are RT Holding Co., Ltd.
and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. at Baht 120 Million. The seller must delever share certificate, transfering documents,
and other documents requested by the buyer, in order to confirm the right of the buyer. The company has entered
into a contract to purchase Piyachart Co., Ltd.’s stock with RT Holding Co., Ltd. and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. on the
following conditions. The seller prevailed the right to ask buyer to return all stock if the accumulated net profit for the
period 2013-2016 is less than Baht 150 Million. If such right is exercised, the buyer must repurchase stock and pay
within 1 month after the seller filed annual report 2016 through SET system. Intercompany liability and transactions, if
any, must be cleared before the repurchase. As at October 1, 2013, the company obtained control over the
subsidiary as all shares have been transferred to the company with conditions as mentioned above. From the
minutes of board of director meeting no. 5/2014 dated August 13, 2014, the meeting unanimously approved to
increase registered capital of Piyachart Co., Ltd., a subsidiary held 100% by the company, from Baht 50 millions to
Baht 250 millions. A subsidiary has registered the increment with Ministry of Commerce on October 28, 2014. And
approved Piyachart Co., Ltd. to invest in 100% stake of Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd. amounting to Baht 25
millions, comprising of 250,000 common shares at Baht 100 par value. The share was pruchased from former

shareholder and was fully paid on October 14 2014.

On December 17, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting No. 5/2010 passed the resolution to invest in
overseas to support its business by approved the establishment of “TWZ International Limited”, a subsidiary in
HongKong, Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China. Its registered capital is HKD 1,000,000
(One Million HongKong Dollars) and the Company will hold 100% by using its working capital. The subsidiary will
conduct business as a global supplier and distributor of mobile phones and all kinds of communication device. On
January 13, 2011, TWZ International Limited was established. The BOD’s meeting also approved the establishment
of a representative office in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China. The representative office will assist the Company
in managing cost and controlling quality of products. The company has register register representative office

registration on February 16, 2012.

On September 16, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting No. 6/2013, the meeting unanimously approved
to incorporate a new subsidiary, TZ Trading Co., Ltd., with Baht 3 Million of registered capital comprising of 300,000
shares at par value of Baht 10 per share. The company will invest 100% on the new subsidiary’s stake. The nature
of the new subsidiary is to import, export, resell, and provide after sell service for mobile phone and its accessory,
computer, and other electronic goods. The newsubsidiary has been registered with the Ministry of Commerce on

September 20, 2013.

On May 14, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting No. 3/2014, the meeting unanimously approved to
establish The Boxes Co., Ltd. with Baht 1,000,000 of the registered capital, main business Agent distributor of digital
signal equipment and also the TWZ was 100% ownership and the company has registered with the Ministry of

Commerce on May 20, 2014.
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At present, the Company has total 31 branches, 22 Telewiz Shops and 9 TWZ Shops.

TELEWIZ 1. Room 333/1, 3“ fl., Central Plaza Pinklao 12. Room A115,122,126 Bonmache Market
2. Room 305, 3" fl., Central Plaza Rama Ill 13. Room 3033, 3° fl., Fashion Island
3. 1%fl., Tesco Lotus Chaengwattana 14. Room 509A, 5" fl., Central City Bangna
4. 2“1l Tesco Lotus Sukhumwit 50 15. Basement, Big C Supercenter Bangna
5. 2"{l., Tesco Lotus Laksi 16. Room A1, 5" fl., Central City Bangna
6. 1°fl., Tesco Lotus Rattanatibet 17. Room F1/10, Carrefour Rama Il
7. 2"{l., Tesco Lotus Rama Il 18. Room 225, 2" fl., Central Plaza Rama I
8. 2" {l., Tesco Lotus Bangna-Trad 19. Room L007/1, 2" fl., Shinawatra Tower 3
9. 1°1l., Tesco Lotus Srinakarin 20. Room GCRB109, Big C Supercenter Bangpli
10. Room 309/1, 3 fl., Central Plaza Ramaindra 21. Basement, Big C Supercenter Don Muang Sapanmai
11. Room 336/3, 3 fl., All Srason Complex 22. 1*fl., Home Pro Bangna
TWZ SHOP 1. Room 244, 2™ fl., Central Plaza Ladprao Room 341/2, 3° fl., Central Plaza Plinklao

Room A-16, 1°fl., Laksi Plaza
138/140 Muany, Khonkaen
4" f|., MBK Center

Room B18 B1 fl., Central Plaza Rama 9
Room 100/1-2 Mae Sot Tak
Room F105-106 Bon Marche Market Park

© [® [N o

RS RCOR TS

Room 320, 3“. fl, Central Chiangmai Plaza

Business Goal

The Company has set its business goal to enhance its sales and services revenues consistently by emphasizing on
the profitability and the increase of its distribution channels especially at the prime locations where consumers in
such community have purchasing power and the places are convenience for using the services, not only the increase
in number of various shops such as TWZ Shop, Telewiz Express and Telewiz Shop, but also the increase in number
of dealers as in order to access more target customers. The Company has improved its service standard to be more
satisfied by customers and be competitive to other players. Besides, the Company will build up to be partner with
additional well-known mobile phone manufacturers and distributors as well as import more mobile phones from China
to distribute under its own brand names in order to be able to obtain quality products with various specifications to

serve different customers’ needs.

Due to its steady expansion, the Company has emphasized more on building up its brand name “TWZ” in order to
strengthen its business operation. Therefore, the Company has established representative office in Shenzhen,
People’s Republic of China to be its center to manage cost and control the quality of products as well as to procure
high quality products at the proper cost. Besides, the Company has expanded to overseas by setting up TWZ
International Limited to distribute mobile phones and all telecommunication devices globally which will enhance the

Company’s revenues to grow constantly.
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Industry and Competition

Upon entering the year 2014, transition of communication technology and telecommunications of Thailand became
even more clear and perfect. From the 3G network that covers main areas and sub spread across country
approximately 3-4 this past quarter. It's makes model of various services including ability to access Broadband
Technology that comes with network and ready to serve nationwide customers more immediately. This is caused the
demand of Consumers to find devices in order to connect. It is a great opportunity for both Service provider of

network, Distribution Business operator of various devices and Service users thoroughly.

Moreover the competitiveness of Network Services Provider or operator of 3 main camps that increased strength of
promotional program and started marketing more intense to usurp most number of members for enter to their
systems or network. It is even more incentive to motivate consumers turned their attention and seeks for various

Smartphone devices more doubly.

The growth of Smartphone market grows rapidly whether it is an Inter Brand product or House Brand products have
higher requirements. It's make intense competition in quality followed which each of parties submit a new product to

market for usurp market share heartily.

From this condition occurred makes various customer groups are learning to choose for Smartphone product which
quality, features and value price, sufficient for their own use more. So it is a great marketing opportunity for operator

to supply quality products with features at a value price for Consumers.

At the end of 3“ quarter of 2014, licensee in AIS has a market share, which is calculated based on number of users
representing of 47.5 percent, licensee in DTAC with market share of 28.2 percent and licensees in TRUE with market

share of 23.4 percent followed by TOT with market share of 0.5 percent and CAT with market share of 0.4 percent.

Market share of Mobile Phone Thailand HHI of Mobile Phone Market

4,000 —
CAT 0.4% TOT 0.5%

3,326
3,364
3,357
3,337
3,348
3,338
3,362
3,444
3,473

3,500 —

(=23 (=23
g B
TRUE 23.4%
AIS 47.5%

From the above-mentioned situation, it can be seen that market conditions and overall demand of new Consumer

groups began increase. Due to a new group of consumers have an opportunity to use 3G networks thoroughly. So
this is considered a good opportunity of TWZ Smartphone that launches products and focus on such consumer
groups coupled with group of customers that begin to use Smartphone and group of customers that having demand
for smart phones with value for money and features that appropriate to their own demand. It makes TWZ
Smartphone are value for money and start getting high popularity respectively until can pulled market share from

such customer groups as many.
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The major players in the mobile phone distribution industry can be divided in 4 groups as follows:

1.

Affiliated Dealer of Mobile Phone Service Operator

The 3 major mobile phone service operators in Thailand is AIS DTAC and True Move distribute their mobile
phones SIM cards, pre-paid cards and accessories through their affiliated shops which are shops managed by
the operators themselves as well as shops under their franchising systems. These shops have clear and
systematic management, after sales services and marketing strategies which determined by the mobile phone
service operators. As the dealers have good relationship with the operators, they always get useful news and
information for supporting their sales and services. Besides, they always have been supported for their
business operations and marketing promotions which enable them to be reliable and trusted by the

customers.

Distributor / Dealer

The entrepreneurs in this group are appointed directly by foreign mobile phone manufacturers. Their main
focuses are selling mobile phone for wholesale. Pricing and marketing policies are jointly determined

between manufacturer and the distributor. The entrepreneurs in this group are:

® M-Link Asia Corporation Public Company Limited
® Samart i-mobile Public Company Limited

® Loxley Public Company Limited

The distributors purchase mobile phones directly from the manufacturers and sell through their dealers or
general retail stores. The fierce competition in mobile phone industry presently has forced the distributors to
improve their distribution strategies by operating their own retail stores in order to maintain their market

shares and most of retail stores are operated under franchise agreement.

Dealer with its own retail shop / retail chain store

The entrepreneurs in this group are directly appointed as dealer by the foreign mobile phone manufacturer but
focusing on selling through their own retail shops and selling points. Besides, they purchase from other
distributors for some specific brands/ models in order to have variety of products at their own shops to serve
all target group of customers while sell some of their products to other distributors also. The players of this
group understand customers’ needs and behaviors as they have to contact directly with both manufacturers

and customers which enable them to be more adaptable to the fast change of the industry.
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Retail Store

These retail stores employ small amount of investment and there is no management system and after sales
services. The owner of the shop deals with customer himself, thus, the price is negotiable. The competition
among the players in this group is only focusing on the price. Therefore, the credibility of this group is less

than others.

Competitive Advantages

TWZ has competitive advantages as the Company plays a major role in 3 groups in mobile phone distribution

industry which are:

1.

The Company is affiliated dealer of the major mobile phone operator, AIS, by granted franchising to open 21
Telewiz branches and 3 Telewiz Express branches. TWZ has most Telewiz shops in Thailand. Moreover, the
Company was granted various rewards for its great selling and services performances from AIS more than 10

years which enable the Company to have good relationship and always get strong support from AlS.

The Company is the distributor of mobile phones “TWZ” which the Company has imported such products from
China to distribute under its own brand names. Such products are cheaper and provide various functions and
they can serve all consumers’ requirements. Besides, the Company is also the dealer of Wireless Device
Supply Company Limited and M-Link Asia Corporation Public Company Limited. The Company also
purchases from other distributors in Thailand. Therefore, the Company has variety of products and also be

able to control cost more efficiency.

The Company has its own retail shops which are 9 TWZ Shops and the company build a franchise under the

Trademark and Trade name “TWZ” for 6 branches all located at prime areas.

With a network of distributors that covering areas of the country more than 300 including quality after-sales service

centers that can provide support both Distributors and Consumers. It's makes overall trust and confidence on

products of TWZ Smartphone. Consequently, the Company has the potential to compete with other operators as

well.
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Risk Factors

Risk associated with the termination of franchise contract with Advance Info Service
Plc.

The Company granted Telewiz franchise from Advance Info Service Plc. (“AlS”) which could be terminated if
any events that violate the terms and conditions of the contract occur or either party may terminate this
contract by giving written notice 60 days prior the termination date to the other party. At present, there are 22
Telewiz shops under TWZ management. Revenues from Telewiz Shops were 11.57% of total revenues in
2014, respectively. Therefore, the revenues of the Company might decrease if the contract is terminated.
Due to the prime locations of the Company’s Telewiz shops, the Company is able to operate these shops in
form of TWZ shop if the termination of contract occurs. In addition, as 81.67% of TWZ’s total revenues are

wholesale; the contract termination is not much effect to the Company’s performance.

The Company’s business consistently supports AlS’s business as it sells only SIM card and refilled card of
AIS network. Though, the Company sells/purchases mobile phone and accessories from other mobile phone
manufacturers, distributors and/or other dealers except for AlS’s affiliated as well as opens mobile phone
shops in other names such as TWZ Shop as informed to AIS, the above businesses always help increase
sales of SIM card and refilled card of AIS network. Besides, Telewiz shops under the Company’s
management have been granted rewards more than 10 years. The Company has most Telewiz shops in
Thailand. Therefore, the management believes that there is a minimal chance that the contract will be

terminated and the Company’s business will be consistently supported by AlS.

Risk from selling SIM card and service refilled for a sole mobile phone operator

At present, the Company sells only SIM Card of Digital GSM Advance, Digital GSM 1800 and service refilled
1-2-Call! which are products of AIS. Revenues from SIM Card and Service refilled were around 0.41% of
total revenues in year 2014, therefore, the Company might have risk from depending on only one operator
from the competition among other mobile phone operators such as Total Access Communications Plc., True
Corporation Public Company Limited or other new operators which might effect AlS’s market share and effect

the Company’s sales eventually.

Risk from depending on major distributors

Each distributor obtains the exclusive right to sell specific products/ models, therefore, to have variety of
products, the Company has to purchase from various distributors. However, the decision to purchase from
any distributor depends on the popularity of the products/ models of each period, discount and other sales

promotions provided by each distributor such as number of mobile phones to be allocated.
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The Company realizes the risk from depending on major distributors; therefore, the Company still maintains its
relationship with other suppliers by diversifying its purchase to other distributors. Besides, the Company is the
distributor of its own brand names “TWZ”. As a result, the Company has up-to-date products which can serve

customers’ needs as well as decrease the dependence from major distributors.

Risk from Foreign Exchange Rate

The Company imported some mobile phones and accessories by paying in foreign currencies, thus, the
Company might have the currency exchange risk. Therefore, the Company has followed exchange rate
movement closely. The Company also has a policy to purchase forward contract to cover the exposure of
foreign purchasing based on the situation as well as the appropriateness in order to mitigate the risk from

foreign exchange rate that may occur.

Risk from product obsolescence

Mobile phone is the fast-paced technological change product, thus, the manufacturer has to consistently
develop new models to serve customers’ need. Therefore, the Company might encounter problems with the
inventory management for the out of dated models which the Company could not sell and eventually has to

decrease the price to compete with new models.

As the Company’s management is in the mobile phone distribution industry nearly 20 years, they understand
thoroughly of the mobile phone industry. They realize the importance of carefully product selection of each
brand/model to sell. Moreover, the Company consistently surveys opinions and needs of both distributors
and dealers. Meanwhile, the Company obtains information about the new mobile phone model, new
technology of mobile phone from well-known mobile phone manufacturers who appointed the Company’s to
be their distributors which enable the Company to be able to select products that are needed. Besides, the
Company has the efficient inventory management by establishing inventory online system which linked to all
the Company’s branches in order to be able to check each branch’s stock. The Company also has distribution
channels through its dealers; therefore, the Company can sell the products very fast before they are out-of-
dated. Moreover, if its mobile phone manufacturers as well as major distributors who appoint the Company to
be their dealers decrease their selling prices in order to be competitive in the market, the Company will be
compensated the price change of each model in accordance with the condition that agreed with those

manufactures and/or distributors.

Risk from competition

The fast growing of mobile phone and accessory distribution business Especially the growth of smart phones,
therefore, mobile phone can be purchased from any sources, not only from operators. Thus, there are new
players, who mostly are small retailers, participating in mobile phone business which will increase the

competition especially the price competition in the industry.
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The Company is the affiliated dealer of AIS who is the largest mobile phone operator, has various products to
serve customers and has covered distribution channels as all the Company’s retail shops located at the prime
area over Bangkok and has more than 300 dealers over the country. Besides, the Company has quality one-
stop service centers, which are able to support all the Company’s products and enable the Company to make
consistently services revenues. As the Company’s management understands thoroughly about the mobile
phone industry as well as the customers’ needs, they are able to solve all the problems very quickly. Due to
the above reasons, the Company believes that it is ready and capable to compete with other players in the

industry.

Risk associated with the rental contracts

The Company distributes its products to its retail customers via its 31 retail shops located in department
stores and super centers; therefore, the Company has to rent the shop area both short term and long term.
The Company may have risk of expiration of rental contracts or change in conditions that cause more

expenses.

As at December 31, 2014, the Company has 4 long-term contracts for 5-25 years, thus, there is no risk to
extend these contracts. The remaining 27 contracts are short-term contracts (not more than 3 years);
therefore, there is risk for contract extension in the future. However, as the Company is the good business

partner with the area owner as well, the probability of this risk is considered low.

Risk from depending on executives who are major shareholders of the Company.

The Company was established by Mr. Puttachat and Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri who is mobile phone and
accessories industry expert and has strong relationship with manufacturers and distributors nearly 20 years.
According to above reason, the Company has a risk from depending on such executive, however,
Mr. Puttachat still holds 18.75% of the Company’s shares which is sufficient to motivate them to continue
manage the Company. Besides, the Company has policy to promote the teamwork management and to
recruit professionals to manage the Company by emphasizing on the efficiency and the development of the
Company. As Mr. Puttachat and Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri aer related persons, in order to prevent the absolute

power, the Company has set the clear responsibility and duty of each position in its authority table.
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Shareholders and Management

List of top 10 major shareholders as of the book closing date on February 27, 2015.

On February 27, 2015

sm%‘m}"ﬁaﬁu No. of shares %

1. Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri 541,428,571 8.68
2. Mr. Wichai Thongtang 418,791,200 6.72
3. Mr. Jaturon Komolmis 354,059,274 5.68
4. Mr. Sippakorn Khaosaard 171,466,800 2.75
5. Mr. Somchai Anohthaiyeunyoung 70,000,000 1.12
6. Mr. Surang Prapakornrujiwong 65,992,200 1.06
7. Mr. Wittaya Naratassajan 65,712,430 1.05
8. Thanpuying Viraya Chavakul 60,000,000 0.96

Mr. Teerawat Thanyalakpak 56,580,000 0.91
10. Thai NVDR Company Limited 55,733,604 0.89

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend payout policy is at a minimum of 40% of net profit after tax and legal reserve. However,
the Board of Directors has the power not to follow the policy or change the policy occasionally under the condition
that it has to maximize the benefit of the shareholders such as have to reserve for loan repayment or business

expansion or in case that
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Management Structure

The Company’s director’s structure comprises of 3 groups of directors, which are Board of Director, Executive

Committee and Audit Committee. The details are as follows:

(1)

Board of Directors

As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors consists of 8 persons as shown in the list as

follows:
1. Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri Chairman
2. Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri Vice Chairman and Managing Director
3. Dr. Tippakorn Rungkasiri Director and Authorized Director
4. Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan Director and Authorized Director
5. Mr. Bandal Udol Independent Director
6. General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
7. Police General Aek Angsananont Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
8. Assoc. Pachara Pacharavnich Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

Miss Nalinee Pratubsorn is the secretary of Company.

Authorized Directors

The authorized directors are Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri jointly with Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan or Dr. Tippakorn

Rungkasiril, totally two authorized persons, to sign on behalf of the Company with the Company’s seal affixed.

Company Secretary

The Board has appointed Miss Nalinee Pratubsorn, Vice President - Human Resource Department to the
position Company Secretary on November 13, 2014 has a duty of care to the company compliance with laws

and regulations related to the company and to adhere to the principles of good corporate governance as

follows.

1. To adhere to good corporate governance.

2. To plan meetings and propose relevant agenda

3. To manage the Board of Directors’ meeting And meeting notes in accordance with the rules and best
practices.

4. To administer the Shareholders’ meeting in line within the legal framework

5. To give advises on legal matters, Public Companies Act and all other rules and regulations of listed

companies, the Company’s affidavits aiming at full compliance with relevant laws
6. Become a contact point providing information to Directors and third parties

7. All matters concerning the Company’s registrar and related document in safe keeping
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Scope of Authority and Duty of the Board of Directors

1.

Except

To honestly manage the Company in accordance with the laws, objectives and articles of associations
as well as resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting and to take precautions in order to protect the
Company’s benefits.

To authorize an appointment a set of directors as Executive Committee to execute one or several
tasks in order to implement the work assigned by the Board of Directors as well as to authorize an
appointment the Chairman of Executive Committee together with other committee such as Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee as deemed appropriate.

To determine business goal, guideline, policy, plan and budget of the Company and monitor and
ensure that the administration of the Executive Committee or the assigned person shall be according
to the policy that set by the Board of Directors.

To consider, review and approve the policy, direction, strategy, business plan, annual budget,
expenditure budget and project investment that proposed by the Executive Committee

To consistently follow up the performance according to the policy and budget that have been set

To consider and approve other related material matters or any appropriate actions that benefit to the

Company.

for the following tasks which can be implemented only obtain the approvals from Shareholders’

Meeting. Any directors or related persons who might be involved with either conflict of interest transaction or

beneficial conflict transaction with the Company or its subsidiaries shall not be granted the right to vote in that

matter.

(@)
(0)

Matters stipulated by Laws must be obtained the resolutions from Shareholders’ Meeting.
Transactions that any directors are involved with either conflict of interest or any other beneficial
conflicts particularly stated by the Laws or regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand must be

obtained the resolutions from Shareholders’ Meeting.

The execution of the following matters must be approved by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders’

Meeting with the votes not less than 3 over 4 of total votes of the eligible shareholders present in the meeting.

(@)
(0)
()

Annual R

To sale or transfer all or major parts of the Company’s business.

To purchase or acquire of other company or other private company

To make, amend or terminate the contract related to the rent of all or some major parts of the
Company'’s business. The appointment of other person who will manage the Company’s business or
the merging with other person in order to share profit and loss.

To amend the Memorandum of Associations or the Articles of Associations.

To increase or decrease capital, to issue debenture, to merge or to terminate the business.

eport 2014
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Executive Committee

As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s Executive Committee comprised of 3 persons as follows:

Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri Chairman of Executive Committee
Dr. Tippakorn Rungkasiri Executive Committee
Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan Executive Committee

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is assigned by the Board of Directors to be authorized to perform the following

tasks for the Company.

1.

7.

To honestly manage the Company in accordance with the laws, objectives, articles of associations,
resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting and resolutions of the Board of Directors’ Meeting and to take
precaution to protect the Company’s benefits.

To determine organization structure, authority table and to ensure the coverage of details in terms of

selection, training, recruitment, reshuffle and dismissal of the Company’s personnel.

To plan and determine the business plan, business strategies and annual budget and propose to the

Board of Directors for approval. Also, to consider and approve the allocation of annual budget, to

amend, adjust, or increase annual expense budget in case of urgent needs and present to the Board

of Directors accordingly.

To audit and monitor the Company’s business operation, policy, and administrative guidance in a

manner that is compatible to business situation.

To audit and to monitor in order to ensure that the company is operated in accordance with the

approved business plans.

To authorize and approve the following financial implementations:

(1) The Executive Committee is entitled to approve unlimited financial amount in case that such
implementation is stated in the business plan or annual budget.

(2) If not stated in documents mentioned in (1), the Executive Committee is entitled to approve an
amount not exceeding Baht 40 million. Such approval shall include the approval on the expense
occurred from general operations, investment on capital assets or fixed assets, borrowing,
obtaining credit line including provision of guarantee, etc. and inform the Board of Directors for
the acknowledgement accordingly.

To implement other tasks as periodically instructed by the Board of Directors.

Such assignment will not entitle the Chairman of the Executive Committee or the Executive Committee to

approve on any matters that might be conflicts of interest to themselves or other party or matters that may

cause any beneficial conflict whatsoever with the Company.
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3)

The Audit Committee

As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s Audit Committee comprised of 3 persons as follows:

1. General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Police General Aek Angsananont Member of Audit Committee
3. Assoc. Pachara Pacharavanich Member of Audit Committee (Has knowledge and experience in

financial statements review)

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Audit Committee

1.

To ensure that the Company has accurately and adequately disclosed its financial statements to public
by cooperating with auditor and in charge executives to prepare financial reports quarterly and
annually by reviewing the financial statements, related financial reports, accounting policy, accounting
standard, the existence of the Company, the major change in accounting policy as well as the
management’s opinion on the accounting policy determination prior to present to the Board of
Directors and eventually disclose to shareholders and general investors. The Audit Committee may
suggest the auditor to examine or investigate any matters considered to be necessary and important
during the auditing period.

To ensure that there are suitable and effective internal control and auditing system in the company by
co - auditing with external auditor and internal auditor (if any). To determine and review the Company’s
audit plan and to evaluate the audit result with the auditor and internal auditor (if any) regarding any
problems or limitations arise during the financial statements auditing. To determine and control on the
electronic data processing as well as the security of the information in order to protect the fraud or
misuse the computer by the Company’s employees or external persons.

To ensure that the company is operated in accordance with Laws governing Securities and Exchange,
the regulations of the Stock exchange of Thailand and the laws pertaining to the business of the
Company.

To select and make suggestions regarding the appointment of the Company’s auditor together with the
audit fee by taking into consideration the credibility, personnel sufficiency, work load of auditing firm as
well as experience of the personnel to be appointed as the Company’s auditor.

To consider and approve any connected transaction and/or any acquisition or disposal of the
Company'’s assets as well as consider the disclosure of the information should there be any connected
transactions or any conflict of interest transactions to be accurate and complete. In addition, to
approve such transactions in order to propose to Board of Directors’ meeting and/or shareholders’
meeting as stipulated under the laws or related regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

To conduct other tasks as instructed by the Board of Directors and/or agreed by the Audit Committee,
i.e. to make revisions on financial policies and risk management, make revisions on compliance with
business ethics, make co - revisions with the Company’s directors on important issues which need to

be disclosed to public as stated by laws, for instance, report and analysis of the management team.
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To prepare the Audit Committee report by disclosing on the Company’s annual report. The report shall

be signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and should contain following information:

- Comments on the preparation process and disclosure of information in the Company’s financial
statements regarding the accuracy and reliability.

- Comments on the sufficiency of the Company’s internal control system.

- Reasons to believe that the Company’s auditor is appropriate to be re-appointed for another
term.

- Comments on the compliance with Laws governing Securities and Exchange, the regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the laws related to the Company’s business.

- Report on other matters that shareholders and investors should be concerned within a scope of
duties and responsibilities appointed by the Board of Directors.

To evaluate the Audit Committee’s performance.

To perform any matters, which stipulated under the laws governing Securities and Exchange and/or

regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

(4) Executives

As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s executives comprised of 4 persons as follows:

1. Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri Managing Director
2. Mr. Kittipong Kittipassorn Vice President - Marketing and Business Development Department
3. Miss Nalinee Pratubsorn Vice President - Human Resource Department
4. Miss Krissana Meungmor Assistant Vice President - Sales Department
Acting Vice President - Sales Department
5. Miss Thitikarn Suksermsarn Assistant Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

Acting Vice President - Accounting and Finance Department

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Managing Director

To manage and supervise general administration of the Company.

To perform as assigned by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Company’s regulations and
articles of associations.

To have the power to employ, transfer, remove, expel, determine wage rates, give gratuities and
rewards, raise salaries, considerations, and bonuses for all employees except the executives.

To authorize an approval on the overall purchase and the expenditure which not exceeding Baht 30
million on general matters as stated in the Company’s Authority Table.

To authorize the issuance of instructions, regulations, announcements, memorandums so that the
Company is operated in compliance with the policy and for the Company’s interest as well as for the

discipline of the organization.
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6. To have the power to represent the Company to deal with external individual for any related business

that is useful to the Company.

7. To have the power to appoint advisor in various fields that are necessary for the Company’s business.
8. To implement other tasks as periodically instructed by the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee.

Managing Director is not entitled to approve any matters that might be a conflict of interest transaction or

conflicts to related party or may cause any beneficial conflicts whatsoever with the Company or subsidiaries.

Selection of the directors

The directors shall be elected by shareholders’ meeting as at the shareholders’ meeting will select the
directors under the procedures stated in the Company’s articles of associations that can be summarized as

follows:

1. The Board of Directors consists of at least 5 persons wherein the directors not less than half of the
number of total directors must be domiciled in the Kingdom and they shall have qualifications as
provided by law.

2. The Shareholders’ meeting shall elect directors in accordance with the criteria and procedures as
follows:

a. Each shareholder shall have one vote per one share.

b. Shareholders shall vote to elect each individual director.

C. The candidates shall be ranked in order descending from the highest number of votes received
to the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors in that order until all of the directors positions
are filled. Where the votes case for candidates in descending order are tied, which would
otherwise cause the number of directors to be exceed, the chairman of the meeting shall make
the final decision.

3. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the directors shall retire. If the number of directors is not
a multiple of three, the number of directors closest to one-third shall retire. The directors that must
retire from office within the first and second year after the listed of the Company shall be selected by
casting lots. In subsequent years, the director who has held office longest shall retire. The directors
who retire from the position may be re-elected.

4. Any directors who want to resign from the office have to submit the resignation letter to the Company
and shall be effective on the date the resignation letter reached the Company.

5. The shareholders’ meeting may pass a resolution removing any director from office prior to retirement
as a result of the expiration of the director’s term of office, by a vote of not less than three quarters of
the number of shareholders attending the meeting who have the right to vote and who have shares
totaling not less than half of the number of shares held by the shareholders attending the meeting and

having the right to vote.
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Selection of independence directors

The Company’s Board of Directors shall consider the preliminary qualifications of the persons to be elected as the

independence directors by considering according to the qualifications as stated in the Public Limited Companies

Acts, the laws governing Securities and Exchange as well as all related announcements, objectives and/or related

regulations. The Board of Directors shall consider selecting the independence directors who are capable, experienced

and appropriate in all aspects and then propose to the shareholders’ meeting for appointment as the Company’s

Board of directors accordingly.

The definition of the independence of the Company’s director is complied with the regulations of the Notification of

the Capital Market Supervisory which are as follows:

1.

Holding shares not more than 1% of the total shares with voting rights of the Company, its
subsidiaries, which shall be inclusive of the shares held by related persons.

Not being or having previously been a director who takes part in management, an employee, a staff
member or advisor who receives a regular salary, or a controlling person of the Company, its
subsidiaries unless the termination of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years before an
appointment as the Company’s independent director.

Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws in the form of fatherhood, motherhood,
spouse, sibling and child as well as child’s spouse, of its executives, its major shareholders, its
controlling persons or such other persons who will be nominated to be executives or controlling
persons of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Having no current or previous business relationship with the Company, its subsidiaries, it major
shareholders or its controlling persons which may interfere his /her independent discretion , and not
being or having previously been a major shareholder or controlling person of the company which has a
business relationship with the Company, its subsidiaries, its major shareholders or its controlling
persons, unless the termination of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years before the
appointment as the Company’s independent director.

Not being or having previously been an auditor of the Company, its subsidiaries, its major shareholders
or its controlling persons and not being a major shareholder or partner of the audit office of the auditor
of the Company, its subsidiaries, its major shareholders or its controlling persons unless the
termination of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years before the appointment as the
Company'’s independent director.

Not being of having previously been any professional service provider including legal advisor or
financial advisor who receives more than 2 million baht annually from the Company, its subsidiaries, its
major shareholders or its controlling persons and not being a major shareholder, controlling person or
partner of such professional service provider unless the termination of being in such position had
occurred at least 2 years before the appointment as the Company’s independent director.

Not being a director appointed as a representative of the Company’s directors, major shareholder or a

shareholder who is related to the Company’s major shareholder.
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8. Not operating any business which has the same nature and significant in competition with the
Company, its subsidiaries or not being a major shareholder in partnership or a director who takes part
in the management, an employee, a staff member or advisor who receives a regular salary or holding
shares more than 1% of total shares with voting rights of other company who operates same business
and significantly competes with the Company and its subsidiaries.

9. Having no characteristics that may affect the giving of independent opinions on the operation of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Selection of Audit Committee

The Board of Directors shall appoint at least 3 audit committees from independence directors who have
qualifications according to the law governing Securities and Exchange including all related announcement,
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding the qualifications and scope of duties of the Audit
Committee. Besides, at least one of the Audit Committee has to have financial and accounting knowledge.

The office term of each committee is 2 years.

Remuneration of Directors and Executives
(1) Monetary Remuneration

Board of Directors’ Remuneration

The Company’s Board of Directors comprised of 8 persons in 2014, the remunerations of each director

were as follows:

Position Remuneration* No. of Attendances

(Baht) Regular | Additional

1. Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri * Chairman 840,000 4/4 4/4
2. Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri * Vice Chairman 500,000 4/4 4/4
3. Dr. Tippakorn Rungkasiri Director 400,000 4/4 4/4
4. Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan  Director 360,000 4/4 2/4
5. Mr. Bandal Udol * Independent Director 535,000 4/4 3/4
6.  General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew = Independent Director and Chairman of 500,000 4/4 3/4

Audit Committee

7. Police General Aek Angsananont  Independent Director and  Member of 520,000 4/4 4/4

Audit Committee

8.  Assoc. Pachara Pacharavanich * Independent Director and  Member of 840,000 4/4 4/4
Audit Committee

Total 4,055,000

Remark:

- Board of Directors’ remuneration consists of meeting allowances and gratuities
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According to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of shareholders No. 1/2014 on April 19, 2014, the

shareholders approved the Board of Directors’ remuneration for not more than Baht 5 million per year.

Executives’ Remuneration

Executives’ remunerations in 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

2013
Remuneration Total (Baht) Total (Baht)
Short term employee benefits 5 10,143,591 5 10,306,305
Post-employment benefits 5) 668,328 5 849,147
10,811,919 11,155,452

Other Remunerations

- None -

Corporate Governance

The Company realizes the importance to operate and manage the business in relation to the good corporate
governance in a firm and concrete manner. The Company has set the good corporate governance policy in order to

increase the transparency of its operation and comply with the principles of good corporate governance for listed

In 2014, the Company implemented the good governance practices following the regulations and the best practice of

corporate governance for listed companies. There are five categories as follows:

Rights of Shareholders

The Company realizes the importance of the basic shareholder rights by operating as follows:

The Company will send an invitation letter with adequate supports for the shareholders in advance.
The invitation letter has details and meeting agendas as well as documents related to rules and
regulations and opinions from the Board of Directors. The proxy form and the map of the meeting
place are also included and the letter notifies shareholders to prepare documents to be shown at the
meeting and used when exercising their rights and voting including the Company’s Articles of
Associations regarding the shareholders meeting. The shareholders can look for information about the
meeting rules and agendas on the Company’s website before they get the invitation letter. Moreover,
the Company will open for advance registration at least two hours before the meeting.

Before every meeting, the Chairman of the meeting will explain the voting method and the vote-
counting method. The Chairman also informs the meeting the voting result for every agenda.

The Chairman of the meeting has to arrange sufficient time for the meeting and manage it properly
and transparently. During the meeting, the Chairman will give chances for shareholders to express

their opinions and ask questions before voting and concluding the meeting resolution for each agenda.
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2.

The Company will disclose information to shareholders regularly through the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and the Company’s website.

The Company will provide minor shareholders with access to information directly via electronic mail of
the Company’s investor relation department.

The Company will operate with efficiency in building sustainable growth for the organization and

generating appropriate returns for the shareholders.

Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Company emphasizes on providing fair and equitable treatments for all shareholders as follows:

1.

The Company will arrange the shareholders’ meeting following the sequence of agendas notified in the
invitation letter and having no policy to add more agendas without informing shareholders in advance
providing shareholders with enough time to study details and related information in each agenda
before making a decision.

The Board of Directors encourages the shareholders, who could not attend the meeting, to appoint
their power of attorney to attend and vote for them. The Board of Directors will provide an option to
shareholders by nominating independent directors for their choice as their proxy and using the proxy
form on which the shareholders are able to specify their votes. The Board of Directors encourages the
using of voting cards for important agenda items such as related party transactions, acquisition or
disposal of significant assets, etc. for the transparency and be able to examine in case there is any
argument later.

The minute of meeting is to be made precisely before submission to the Stock Exchange of Thailand
within 14 days after the meeting which it will also be disclosed via the Company’s website.

The Company shall outline the measures regarding information security and prevention of insider
trading in the Company’s corporate governance policy to create fairness for shareholders. Director,
executive, employee and staff are prohibited to trade, transfer, accept the Company’s share by using
the Company’s confidential information and/or inside information and/or to enter into any contractual
agreement by using the confidential information and/or inside information which may cause any direct
or indirect damages to the Company by prohibiting director, executive, employee and staff to trade the
Company’s shares for a period of 1 month prior to the release of financial statements to the public.

This prohibition includes their couples as well as their minor children.

Role of stakeholders

The Company realizes the importance of role of stakeholders including shareholders, staff, trading partners,

competitors, customers, the community, the society and the environment. Treatments for each stakeholder

have been notified clearly in the corporate governance policy which staff at all levels will use it as a guideline

of their duties and responsibilities.
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: The Company is determined to take responsibility and to satisfy the shareholders

by making a sustainable growth and an appropriate return constantly along with

transparency in management and reliable accounting system.

: The Company will ensure customer satisfaction and confidence about quality

products and services at reasonable prices. It will build long-term good

relationship with customers.

: The Company is concerned about fairness, honesty and mutual benefit with its

trading partners. Thus, the trading partners shall strictly comply with related rules

and regulations as well as have business ethics.

: The Company will follow rules of fair competition.

: The Company considers staff as one of key factors for success. Staff will feel that

they have good working environment and friendly corporate culture and this will

promote a strong teamwork and staff confidence.

: The Company realizes the responsibility to the community and society by

considering the growth of the Company together with the development of the

community.

Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors shall ensure that all relevant information, both financial and non-financial, is disclosed

correctly, accurately, on a timely basis and transparently by disclosing through the SET’s channel and the

Company’s website (www.twz.co.th). Such information will be consistently updated so that the investor and

related party have sufficient and equal information for the decision.

The material information both financial and non-financial that have to be disclosed are as follows:

1. Annual statements (Form 56-1) and annual report
2. Corporate governance policy and the implementation of the policy
3. A statement of the Board of Directors’ responsibilities concerning the Company’s financial reports

presented along side the auditor report of the Company’s annual report

4. Disclosure of the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and other committees, including

the number of the meetings and attendances of each director

5. Disclosure of the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the management

Besides, the Company has set up the Investor Relation unit to communicate and promote useful information

to the shareholders, investors, analysts and general public through various channels including analyst

meeting, conference call, answer question through phone and the Company’s website, etc.
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5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the key of the Company’s good corporate governance practices. The Board of

Directors should comprise of those who possess knowledge and experience in the fields related to the

Company’s business and willing to contribute time for the Company.

Board of Directors’ structure

1.

The Company’s Board of Directors comprise of 8 directors, of which 3 director are the Company’s
management and the remaining 5 directors are non-management including 4 independent directors
according to the Company’s Articles of Association which indicated that the Company shall maintain at
least 5 directors at all time and the good corporate governance of which at least 1/3 of the entire
Board of Directors have to be the independent directors.

The Company has clearly set term of service of directors to be in line with the principles of good
corporate governance for listed companies and regulations of the SET. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors shall retire. If the number of directors is not a multiple of three, the
number of directors closest to one-third shall retire.

The Company clearly determines the qualifications of the Audit Committee; such qualifications are
more restricted than minimum qualifications specified by the SEC and the SET.

The Company discloses details of each director in annual statement (Form 56-1) and be able to see
the details from the SET’s website (www.set.or.th)

The Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director are not the same person and their
roles and responsibilities are different. The Board of Directors has clearly determined roles and

responsibilities for both the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director.

The Sub-Committee

To have a careful and efficient consideration on important plans and operation, the Company’s Board of

Directors appoints sub-committees as follows:

The Audit Committee is appointed from at least three board directors and at least one among them
must be an independent director and have knowledge and expertise on accounting and finance. The
Audit Committee must have independence as required by the announcement of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Audit Committee has a duty to
monitor and supervise the Company’s operation, financial statements and internal controls. It may also
consider the nomination of auditor, consider conflict of interests and manage risks for the Company.

The Executive Committee is appointed from 3 board directors and has duty and responsibility to
screen business plans and financial budgets which, then, will be proposed to the Board of Directors.
The Executive Committee will outline the investment policy to suit the Company’s major policy. The

Committee may work on other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors.
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The Company has not set the Remuneration Committee; however, the Company has set the preliminary
consideration procedure for the appropriate remuneration by comparing its remuneration amount with the

comparable firms in the same industry together with the Company’s performance.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for their role in managing for the best interest of the Company.
Role, duties and responsibility of the Board of Directors shall comply with legislations, Company’s Articles of
Association, resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting and corporate governance principles. The Board of
Directors shall perform with honesty, integrity, responsibility and accountability, along with transparent
disclosure of information. It will supervise the management performance to meet the goal, maximize profits for
shareholders and also concern about interests of all stakeholders. To enhance the Company’s strength and

efficiency, the Board of Directors has active roles and duties as follows:

1. To contribute time and emphasize the importance of vision, direction and strategy for the Company by
jointly expressing opinions and gathering important information. The Board of Directors will also
consider risk factors to make sure that the management is able to implement the Company’s business
vision, direction and strategy for the highest benefit.

2. To examine and grant approval on the Company’s important strategy and policy as well as financial
projections and business plans. The Board of Directors will regularly follow up the management to
work and implement all action plans initiated to meet the Company’s business direction and strategy.

3. To establish the reliable accounting system, financial statements and auditing and pursuing the
procedure and assessments of internal controls efficiently and effectively.

4. To examine business risks which may happen in the future and carefully adopt risk management
policy. The Board of Directors will supervise the management to arrange the efficient risk-management
system and explore new business opportunities arisen from the risks.

5. To examine and solve problems arisen from conflict of interests and connected transactions. The
Board of Directors should consider major transactions which will benefit the Company, shareholders
and stakeholders the most.

6. To arrange the remuneration system for the Company’s executives to create incentives to perform in
both short and long term.

7. To evaluate the performance of the Managing Director regularly and proposing remunerations for the
Managing Director which is in line with the Company’s performance.

8. To provide a channel to communicate with each group of shareholders and to evaluate the information
disclosure to ensure that it is accurate, precise, transparent and highly reliable.

9. To have leadership and be a role model by complying with the Company’s corporate governance

practices.

www.twz.co.th

153



154

Board Meetings

1. The Board of Directors shall set its meeting schedule in advance and notify each director of the
schedule so that each member of the board can manage time to attend the meetings. In case of
emergency, the Company may call for an additional meeting.

2. In 2014, there were 7 meetings of the Board of Directors which was appropriate to the obligations and
responsibilities of the Board and nature of the Company.

3. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director should set the Board meeting agenda together
and ensure that all important issues are already included. Each member of the Board should be free
to propose an issue for a meeting agenda.

4. Meeting documents should be sent to each director in advance of the meeting date. The document
should be concise, with all relevant information. Any confidential issues should be brought to discuss
during the meeting.

5. The Chairman of the Board should appropriately allocate the meeting time for complete management’s
presentation and comprehensive directors’ discussion. The Chairman should encourage careful
consideration in the meeting.

6. The Board should have access to additional information, under a prearranged condition, via the
managing director, the company secretary or the executive designated as a contact person.

7. Non-executive directors should be able to meet, as necessary, among themselves without
management team in order for them to debate their concerns. The meeting outcome should be notified

to the Managing Director.

Board Self -Assessment

1. The Board of Directors conducts the Board self assessment annually to discuss and consider the
performance and problem for further improvement. The topics of the self assessment are clearly
defined in order to be benchmark for performance comparing.

2. The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the Board as a whole and on individual basis,

such assessment shall be performed cautiously and carefully.

Remuneration

1. Board of Directors’ remuneration is comparable to the industry level in which the Company operates;
reflect experience, obligations, scope of work, accountability and responsibilities and contributions of
each director.

2. Remuneration of the Executive Committee, the Chairman of the Executive Committee, Managing
Director and top executives are in accordance with the principle and policy as specified by the Board
of Directors. For the best interest of the Company, executives’ salaries, bonuses, and other long-term

compensation should correspond to the Company’s performance and that of each executive.
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Board of Directors and Executives Training

1. The Board of Directors encourages and facilitates training for all internal parties related to corporate
governance such as directors, members of the Audit Committee, executives, the secretary of the
Board, internal audit department, SET’s coordinator, etc. Training will enable them to continuously
improve their performances.

2. New directors shall be provided with all documents and useful information to perform their duties.
Introduction to the nature of the business and the operations of the company is necessary.

3. The Board of Directors shall establish a development program for the Executives. The Managing
Director and the Executives shall report to the Board in relation to the operation result during each

quarter for operation achievement according to the target and objective of the Company.

Personnel
Number of Staff

As at December 31, 2014, the total staffs of the Company classified by each department are as follows:

Department No. of Staffs

Administration and Finance Department 57
Accounting Department 15
Internal Control Department 4
Sales Department and After Sales Services Department 282
Product Management Department 5

Total 363

Staff Remuneration

(1) Monetary Remuneration

Staff remunerations (exclude executives remuneration) in 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

2013 2014

Type of Remuneration (Baht) (Baht)
Short term employee benefits 75,754,024 99,100,637
Post-employment benefits 304,886 326,823
Total 76,058,910 99,427,460

(2) Other Remuneration

- None -

www.twz.co.th



156

Human Resources Development Policy

The Company supports and provides opportunities to all levels of employees to obtain additional knowledge
and capability in order to be suitable with their positions and assigned duties as well as for the Company’s
and their own developments in the future by consistently arrange training which can be divided into 2 types as

follows:

1. Internal Training which is trained by the supervisor or invite speaker in related business to share his
knowledge, experience and give advises so that the staff can be able to apply the knowledge with his
duty and responsibility. The inside training normally is arranged once in 1-3 months.

2. External Training which is held by the product owners such as AIS in order to educate the Company’s staff
to understand their products and services. The Company also provides other trainings to increase its

staff efficiency when appropriate.

Internal Control

At the Board of Director’'s Meeting No. 2/2015 on February 27, 2015, the Board of Directors together with the
Audit Committee had considered and assessed the sufficiency of the Company’s internal control for five main

areas as follows:

1. Organizational Control and Environmental measure
2 Risk Management Measure

3. Management Control Activities

4 International and Communication Measure

5 Monitoring

From the above assessment, the Board of Directors viewed that the Company has sufficient and proper
internal control system of five main areas including the adequate internal control system on transaction done
with the major shareholders, directors, executives or related persons. Besides, the Board of Directors
encourages and supports the management to keep improving the quality on internal control system in order to

obtain the Good Corporate Governance.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Social Responsibility Policy

The company was aware of the importance of being part of Thailand and social responsibility in every of activities to
the community, suppliers, partners, customers and employees. By adhering treated with fairness and not cause

impact or burden on society includes not contrary to morals and laws.

The operations with fairness.

The company has a policy of purchasing products to sell from suppliers who operate their businesses legally.
A product that does not infringe intellectual property rights of others. These include the product quality inspection
from the manufacturers. The Company’s policy is asked to visit an establishment or producing factory before making
a purchase. Moreover the Company had to check the quality of the product again before being sold to customers to

ensure that such products qualified established quality and not be dangerous to customers or users.

For the sale of the company, the company supports the competition is liberalization and fairness to all parties. No
monopoly, or assign a partner to sell only products of the company. Wholesale pricing to dealers as to the criteria
standards under the same conditions for each partner such as the volume of orders, payment history, etc. And retail
pricing to the retail customer, it is compliant prices all the same. Moreover the Company does not support to acquire

of competitor information illegally or against the good morals as well.

Anti-corruption.

The Company defines the policy against corruption, bribery, graft and corruption with all levels of employees, which
clarified understanding in this matter with the staff regularly. And impose sanctions for employees who violate are

strictly prohibited.

Respect for Human Rights.

The Company to respect human rights and freedom of employees at all levels. Do not block the expression of rights
and freedom of employees to join any organization, group or association as action properly under the law. And
provide opportunities for employees to exercise their right to vacations for participates the rights and freedom of
expression. This must be done for the benefit of society or publicly. The companies are committed to respecting the
privacy rights of employees by will not disclose the personal information of employees, such as family history,
personal medical history, salary etc. to a third party or unrelated individuals, except with the permission of the

employee or pursuant to law.

www.twz.co.th

157



158

To treats labor fairly.

The company recognizes the value of collaboration in duty personnel for the company. It is important to strengthen

potential, knowledge and competencies of employees. Also build moral and encouragement to perform equally.

The company also has welfare, health care and safety in the working to employees under the laws. Including care
employees in the workplace, working environment, equipment, facilities needed to perform for aim to employees, a
pleasure to work with the company. In addition to basic welfare, the company also provides additional benefits to
employees, such as the Free Lunch Program to encourage employees to have the opportunity to learn together
interchangeable, apart from the normal practice. It also helps ease the burden of the cost of the livelihood of the

employees another way.

For the development of knowledge and skills of employees. The company has provided training to employees within
the organization to continually as appropriate and necessary to strengthen their capacity to live together in society

and attitudes of employees, which will be helpful to development yourself, company and society.

Responsible to consumers.

The Company recognizes the importance of accountability to consumers is a key factor in business. Its products are
sold to consumers through the quality inspection of the manufacturer, verified and authorized by the relevant
governmental agencies and pass the quality check again before delivery to the consumer. Moreover the Company
has a policy to guarantee the quality of all items by product type, under the terms and conditions set forth to give

consumers confidence and security in the use of products.

Environment conservation.

The company has instilled employees to participate in saving the environment with the project within the organization
such as water saving campaign together, saving electricity use at work, the paper is then recycled (Reuse) and
project off the air conditioner 10 minutes before lunch etc.. Addition to the campaign within the organization, the
company with a focus on saving the environment from products that may cause harm if not rid properly such as
Project of leave the old battery at branches of company by customers or the public dispose of old batteries that are
not used within a container prepared and the company will collect old batteries to a company with expertise in such

matters was operated next.
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Connected Transactions

The Company’s connected transactions in 2013 were as follows :

Transaction Value Necessity and
Related parties Pelationship Details (Million Baht) Reasonableness
Mrs. Piyanuj Managing Loan agreement, 1.13 Piyachart Co., Ltd., a subsidiary company Obtained
Rungkasiri Director did not interest, and loan from Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri the directors in
repayable on called. the Loan agreement, did not interest, and repayable

on called. Were necessity and benefit to the
subsidiary company as Invested on the property of
the State Railway of Thailand. But insufficient of
working capital it is necessary to such type of loans

from directors.

Connected Transaction Approval Procedure

The Company has set a procedure to enter into any connected transactions with any related persons that the
executives and the related persons shall not participate for the approval for any mentioned transactions. The
Company shall arrange the Audit committee to provide the comment on the necessity, reasonableness, and price
appropriateness of the transaction by stating the conditions to be in accordance with the normal business operation
at the market price and be comparable to others. In case that the Audit Committee has no expertise to review such
connected transaction, the Company will hire an independent expert or auditor to express the opinion for the
transaction occurred in order to use for further consideration at the Board of Directors’ meeting or shareholder’s
meeting. In addition, the Company will disclose the connected transaction in the notes of the financial statements

audited by the Company’s auditor.

Additionally, the Board of Directors has to ensure that the Company abides by the laws governing Securities and
Exchange and rules, announcement, declaration and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the
information disclosure of the connected transaction as well as the acquisition and disposal of the assets according to

the accounting standard set by the Federation of Accounting Profession.

Policy for Future Connected Transaction

In the future, the Company might borrow short-term loan from its related persons in case of any urgent or necessity
matters. If there are other connected transactions in the future, the Company will follow the procedure that has been

set in the Connected Transaction Approval Procedure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenues

The revenues of the Company increased from Baht 3,724.79 million in year 2012 to Baht 4,029.32 million in year
2013 or at the growth rate of 8.18% and increased to Baht 4,237.62 million in 2014 or at the growth rate of 5.17%.
Revenues in year 2014 consisted of sales revenues, service revenues, revenue from real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement, sales promotion, Excess of interest in the net-asset value of subsidiary that-over
purchase cost, and others as the proportion of 96.42%, 1.08%, 1.37%, 0.73% and 0.41% of total revenues,

respectively.

Sales and services revenues which were the main revenues of the Company consisted of sales of mobile phone,
accessories, SIM card and refilled cards, revenues from service center, revenues from AIS commission online and
counter service fees, increased from Baht 3,669.35 million in year 2012 to Baht 3,879.52 million in year 2013 or at
the growth rate of 5.73% and increased to Baht 4,085.82 million in year 2014 or at the growth rate of 5.32%. The
sales and services revenues of year 2013-2014 Company to sell mobile phone accessories (smart phones) and the
value per unit increased the popularity of the consumer, the company’s revenue from sales and services increased

from 2012.

The company has revenues from real estate project for rental under financial lease agreement on the leasehold of
the State Railway of Thailand. On Ratchadapisek road, Bangkok under the project name The WIZ Ratchada
increased from Baht 17.38 million in year 2012 to Baht 92.84 million in year 2013 or growth rate 434.18 and
decreased to Baht 45.62 million in year 2014 or reduction rate of 50.86%. While in 2012 the Company recognized
only the phase 1, some of which have not been recognized as income in 2011 only. For the year 2013, The
company has implemented the construction of commercial buildings in phase 2 is completed and recognized some
revenue as well as the revenue recognition of the remaining Phase 1. For the year 2014 The Company revenue

recognition of the remaining Phase 2.

Revenue from land and improvement. In 2013, the company has invested in subsidiaries and recognized revenue
from Revenue from land and improvement was Baht 2.80 million, which in the same period of the previous year thus

no revenue from sales in 2013 as mentioned.

Sales promotion revenues are revenues from mobile phones manufacturers and operators of the Company which
increased from Baht 19.68 million in year 2012 to Baht 39.13 million in year 2013 or at the growth rate of 98.83%
and increased to Baht 57.92 million in year 2014 or at the growth rate of 18.79%. In the years 2013-2014 the

company’s marketing activities in the mobile distribution and accessories. It received the support of the distribution.

For other revenues in the years 2012-2014 was Baht 18.38 million in 2012 to Baht 15.03 million in 2013, or the
reduction rate of 18.23% and increased to Baht 17.29 million in 2014 or the growth rate of 15.04%. Mostly as from

interest income increased by fix deposit and interest income on finance leases of real estate.
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Cost of Goods Sold

In year 2012-2014, the cost of goods sold of the Company were Baht 3,446.79 million, Bath 3,588.71 million and
Baht 3,766.93 million, respectively. The percentage of the cost of goods sold to total sales revenues were 93.93%,
92.50% and 92.20% in year 2012-2014, respectively. The percentage of the cost of goods sold to total sales

revenues were decreased because the Company’s management to plan and manage sales and services effectively.

The cost of real estate project for rental under financial lease agreement

The cost of real estate project for rental under financial lease agreement was Baht 12.09 million in the year 2012
increased to Baht 48.33 million in the year 2013 or at the growth rate of 299.75% and decreased to Baht 20.72
million or the reduction rate 57.13% which was the result from the reasons mentioned above. The portion of cost to

revenues of real estate project under financial lease agreement was 69.56% ,52.06% and 45.42% respectively.

The cost of land and improvement

The cost of land and improvement in year 2013 of Baht 2.58 million, according to the reasons mentioned above.

Selling and Administration Expenses

The Company’s selling expenses were Baht 53.99 million, 58.06 million and Baht 78.67 million in year 2012-2014,
respectively. The administration expenses (including the directors’ remunerations) were Baht 109.34 million, Baht

126.22 million, Baht 141.48 respectively.

The percentage of selling and administration expenses to total revenues were 4.38% in year 2012, 4.57% in year
2013 and 5.20%. In year 2014 Company there are costs to increasing marketing activities to increase sales and

expand distribution channels. The Company continues to control operating costs other effectively

Net Profit
The Company’s gross profit margin in year 2012-2014 equaled to 6.18%, 8.44%, and 8.32%, respectively. Gross
profit in year 2013-2014 increased to because the Company’s management to plan and manage cost sales and

services effectively.

In year 2012-2014, the Company’s operating profit margin equaled to 2.28%, 4.79%, and 4.39%, respectively
enabled net profits of the Company in year 2012-2014 were Baht 3.63 million, Baht 79.69 million and Baht 118.57
million, respectively or the equivalent to net profit margin of 0.10%, 1.98%, 2.80% respectively. The net profit of year

2014 increased from the previous year due to the operation result as mentioned above.
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Returns on Equity / Return on Assets

Returns on equity of the Company in year 2012-2014 equaled to 0.50%, 10.43% and 7.80%, respectively. The

Company’s returns on assets were 0.16% in 2012 to 2.93% in 2013 and 3.59% in year 2014.

Financial Status

(@)

Assets

The total assets of the Company were Baht 2,397.77 million, Baht 3,039.49 million and Baht 3,558.24
million in year 2012-2014, respectively, or the growth rate of 26.76% and growth rate of 17.07%,
respectively. The Company’s total assets at the end of year 2014 consisted of current assets with the
portion of 81.10% and non-current assets with the portion of 18.90%. The Company’s major assets

were summarized as follows:

Accounts Receivable (Net)

Accounts receivable of the Company were Baht 671.83 million in year 2012, increased to Baht 690.31
million in year 2013, or at the growth rate of 11.73% and increased to Baht 699.15 million at the end of
year 2014, or at the growth rate of 1.28%. The accounts receivable of the Company were the result of
the emphasizing on wholesale. The Company has policy to provide credit term 30-60 days to its
distributors who have regular sales volume and good payment record. Therefore, the Company’s

accounts receivable days were 58 days in year 2012, 62 days in year 2013 and 63 days in year 2014.

Inventory

The inventory of the Company consisted of mobile phone handsets, SIM cards and accessories were
at the total amount of Baht 933.25 million in year 2012, Baht 997.80 million in year 2013 and Baht
1,102.17 million in year 2014. The inventory turnover of the Company in year 2012-2014 equaled to
96 days, 99 days and 102 days, respectively.

Advance Payment for Goods

Advance payment for goods is the payment in advance according to normal commercial condition,
which the Company agreed with manufacturers and mobile and accessories distributors. In 2012-2014,
the advance payment for goods of the Company was Baht 246.99 million, Baht 264.75 million and
Baht 275.57 million, respectively, because the Company purchased more products from its distributors
and manufacturers from China. According to the agreed commercial condition, the advance payment
for goods has to be at 80-100% of total purchase. Therefore, its advance payment for goods

increased.
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Non-current assets

Non-current assets of the Company decreased from Baht 470.51 million in year 2012 to Baht 711.84
million in year 2013 and increased to Baht 672.52 million at the end of year 2014 or the equivalent of
19.62%, 23.42% and 18.90% of total assets in 2012-2014 respectively. The portion of non-current
assets is quite small in relation to total assets because the Company is in trading business; its major
assets are accounts receivable and inventories. Major non-current assets at the end of year 2014
consisted of accounts receivable of real estate project under financial lease agreement at the amount
of Baht 45.25 million, building improvement, tool equipment, office equipment, office furniture and
vehicles at the amount of Baht 19.58 million, leasehold right at the amount of Baht 171.27 million, fixed
deposit at the amount of Baht 373.86 million, Land held for development at the amount of Baht 23.63
million, Deferred tax assets at the amount of Baht 5.46 million, Goodwill at the amount of Baht 18.58
million and other non-current assets at the amount of Baht 14.89 million. The leasehold of its parts

and the amount of the fix deposit as collateral for the credit facility from finance institutions.

Liquidity

Cash Flow

In year 2013, cash flow from operation of the Company was Baht 9.82 million as a result of the
increased of accounts receivable and inventories. In year 2014, cash flow from operation of the
Company was Baht 0.90 million as a result of the increase of inventories and cash payment for
financial cost.

In year 2013, the cash flow from investing activities of the Company was Baht (159.70) as a result of
in Cash payment for investment in subsidiary company and development and equipment. In year
2014, the cash flow from investing activities of the Company was Baht (35.81) million as a result of
cash payment for investment in subsidiary company.

In year 2013, the Company got the additional bank overdraft and short-term loan. Therefore, its cash
flow from financing activities was Baht 326.44 million. In year 2014, the Company got the increase
capital. Therefore, its cash flow from financing activities was Baht 311.03 million and cash and cash

equivalent item increased to be Baht 276.15 million.

Current Ratio

Current ratio of the Company in year 2012-2014 equaled to 1.18 times, 1.16 times and 2.42 times,
respectively. The current assets of the Company increased due to the increased of accounts
receivable and inventory while the bank overdrafts and letter of credit for products purchase
decreased.

The cash cycles of the Company in year 2012-2014 were 57 days, 53 days, and 65 days, respectively.
In 2013, the Company’s inventory turnover was 99 days while account receivable turnover was 62
days and the account payable turnover was 108 days. In 2014, its inventory turnover was 102 days,
account receivable turnover was 63 days which account payable turnover increased to be 99 days,

therefore, its cash cycle was lengthen.
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Audit Fee

Source of Capital

Capital Structure Appropriateness

The total liabilities of the Company as of December 31, 2014 amounted to Baht 1,322.23 million,
reduction by 40.84% from year 2013. The decreased in liabilities was due to the decreased in bank
overdraft and letter of credit for product purchase, long-term loan from related parties and Long-term
loans. The Company’s shareholders’ equities equaled to Baht 2,236.01 million thus, the Company’s

debt to equity ratio was 0.59 times, decreased from 2.78 times in year 2013.

C&A Accounting Firm was the office of the auditor of the Company for year 2014, the remunerations are as follows:

1. Audit fee

The Company paid the audit fees to the office of the auditor for the year 2014 are as follows:

Company Audit Fees

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited 1,105,000.00
TZ Trading Co.,Ltd (Subsidiary) 120,000.00
Piyachart Co., Ltd. (Subsidiary) 400,000.00
The Boxes Co., Ltd. (Subsidiary) 30,000.00
Le Andaman Development (Subsidiary) 200,000.00

Total Audit fees 1,855,000.00

2. Non-Audit Fee

The Company has not received any other services from the office of the auditor or person or entity that

related the auditor and the office of the auditor during the latest accounting period.

Person or entity that related to the auditor and the office of the auditor includes:

1)
2)

o o b~ W
- = = =

Spouse and children under support of the auditor

Juristic person that has control over the office of auditor, juristic person that is under control of the
office of auditor and juristic person that is under the same control of the office of auditor both direct
and indirect control

Juristic person that is significantly controlled by the office of auditor

Partner or equivalent of the office of auditor

Spouse and children under support of person in (4)

Juristic person that the auditor, person in (1), (4) or (5) has significant control power over both direct

and indirect control
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Report of Audit Committee

Dear Shareholders

The Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited as appointed by the Board of Directors is entirely

made of three independent members who meet the qualification as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand

namely:
1. General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Police General Aek  Angsananont Member of Audit Committee
3. Assoc. Prof. Pachara Pacharavanich Member of Audit Committee

In fiscal year 2014, the Audit Committee attended 5 meetings with the Company’s management and Internal Audit
Department according to the relevant agendas to review the operation performed within the scope of duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors. All minutes of the meetings were submitted to the Board of

Directors for acknowledgement. The duties and responsibilities could be summarized as follows:

1. To review the accuracy of the quarterly and annual financial statements as well as the information
disclosure in the notes to financial statements.

2. To evaluate the adequacy of the internal control system and acknowledge the audit report according to
the annual audit plan of Internal Audit Department.

3. To review and ensure that the Company is operated in accordance with the laws, regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand or any regulations related to the Company’s business.

4. To consider the Company’s information disclosure to comply with the related laws including the
connected transactions and any transactions that might cause any conflicts of interest.

5. To provide comments with regards to all aspects of business operation to its management through the

Board of Directors in order to increase efficiency in business operation.

The Audit Committee was of the opinion that in 2014 the Company performed in accordance with the laws or related
regulations with adequate and proper internal control system as well as no material weaknesses. The Company’s
financial statements were prepared with accuracy, completeness and sufficiency in accordance with the general

accepted accounting principles.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

S T

General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Chairman of the Audit Committee

February 27, 2015
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Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements of TWZ Corporation Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited, which comprise the
consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated
and separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then

ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries and of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2014, and its consolidated and
separate results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting

Standards.

C&A Audit Office Co., Ltd.

Z M
(Miss. Jintana Mahavanich)

Certified public accountant (Thailand) no. 4687

Bangkok : February 27, 2015
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Statements of Financial Position

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
As at December 31, 2014
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statement

Note December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalent 8 497,998,009.00 221,844,984.77  461,433,234.98 210,322,156.45
Trade account receivables-net 9 699,151,703.71 690,310,744.16 = 696,186,110.63 690,310,744.16
Current portion of account receivables of real
estate project under financial lease agreement 10 3,050,599.99 4,987,723.26 3,050,599.99 4,987,723.26
Inventories-net 11 1,102,172,983.78  997,799,930.31 1,097,126,160.07 997,799,930.31
Real estate development project for sale 13 133,360,062.96 10,323,999.07 37,036,063.89
Real estate development project for rental
under financial lease agreement 12 138,877,412.01  113,344,439.53 12,882,599.92  26,707,829.08
Other current assets
Advance payment for goods-net 14 275,5672,621.66 264,754,166.38  275,572,621.66 264,754,166.38
Other current assets-net 15 35,539,332.53 24,281,277.92 47,742,107.70 24,256,926.00
Total current assets 288,572,272.64 2,327,647,265.40 2,631,029,498.84 2,219,139,475.64
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposit 16 373,855,668.08 375,065,163.04  372,600,000.00  375009682.00
Account receivables of real estate project
under financial lease agreement-net 10 45,246,831.32 41,048,453.16 45,246,831.32 41,048,453.16
Investment in subsidiary company 17 - 327,958,069.00 126,958,069.00
Land held for development 23,625,000.00  56,983,550.00 - 33,358,550.00
Building improvement and equipments-net 18 19,584,717.45 13,336,469.02 18,917,723.34 12,349,642.76
Leasehold land-net 19 167,039,880.43 184,200,177.81 6,253,709.69  13,745,645.94
Leasehold rights-net 20 4,229,956.65 6,295,119.30 4,229,956.65 6,295,119.30
Intangible assets-net 21 551,129.97 327,924.22 511,200.99 296,712,00
Goodwill 18,577,984.03  18,577,984.03 -
Deferred tax assets 22 5,460,480.32 2,790,552.42 -
Other non-current assets
Guarantee for leasehold rights and services 11,342,540.62 10,906,053.85 11,342,540.62 10,906,053.85
Other non-current assets 3,002,998.05 2,308,507.20 2,514,782.89 2,288,507.20
Total non-current assets 672,517,186.92 711,839,954.05 789,574,814.50 622,256,435.21

Total assets 3,558,239,912.36 3,039,487,219.45 3,420,604,313.34 2,841,395,910.85

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position (Continued)

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary

As at December 31, 2014

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statement
Note December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Bank overdraft and short-term loans from

financial institutions 24 1,009,339,034.71 1,884,464,167.37 1,009,339,034.71 1,883,481,332.97
Trade accounts payable 85,541,068.89  60,158,094.73 88,891,142.01 60,158,094.73
Current portion of long-term loans 26 - 396,774.02
Current portion of liabilities under

financial lease agreement 27 = 29,245.39 = 29,245.39
Current portion of rental for real estate

recognized under financial lease agreement 28 5,046,539.93 5,154,733.14 2,376,963.07 2,427,922.78
Advance received from real estate project 40,684,210.59 17,699,342.13 1,200,000.00 1,500,000.00
Other current liabilities 25 53,543,096.33  42,774,687.30 41,469,340.57  34,184,292.49

Total current liabilities 1,194,153,950.45 2,010,677,044.08 1,143,276,480.36 1,981,780,888.36

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans 26 - 24,911,280.00 - -
Long-term loan from related parties 5.1 1,132,023.10 80,952,091.72 -
Rental for real estate recognized under

financial lease agreement-net 28 75,990,841.41 81,037,381.34 35,792,330.03  38,169,293.10
Deferred tax liabilities 22 44,762,474.91 32,767,024.70 15,097,478.20  10,921,189.60
Employee benefit obligation 29 6,193,037.00 4,779,884.00 5,852,159.00 4,515,493.00

Total non-current liabilities 128,078,376.42 224,447,661.76  56,741,967.23  53,605,975.70

Total liabilities

1,322,232,326.87

2,235,124,705.84 1,200,018,447.59 2,035,386,864.06

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position (Continued)

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary

As at December 31, 2014

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statement

Note December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 30
Registered share capital
7,518,561,214 ordinary shares
of Baht 0.10 each 751,856,121.40 751,856,121.40
3,428,571,436 ordinary shares
of Baht 0.10 each 342,857,143.60 342,857,143.60
Issued and paid-up share capital
6,233,656,267 ordinary shares
of Baht 0.10 each 623,365,626.70 623,365,626.70
2,400,000,005 ordinary shares
of Baht 0.10 each - 240,000,000.50 - 240,000,000.50
Premium on common shares 1,164,979,936.55 160,253,276.55 1,164,979,936.55 160,253,276.55
Advance receivable share fee 30 594,168.30 594,168.30
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve 31 34,135,922.34  30,000,000.00 34,135,922.34  30,000,000.00
Unappropriated 412,481,440.59 373,684,357.24  397,510,211.86 375,755,769.74
Other components of equity 450,491.21 424,879.32 -
Total shareholders’ equity 2,236,007,585.69 804,362,513.61 2,220,585,865.75 806,009,046.79

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

3558239,912.56 3,039,487,219.45

3,420,604,313.34 2,841,395,910.85

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
For the year ended December 31, 2014

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statement
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues from sales and services 4,085,820,038.41 3,879,517,879.78 4,003,310,807.85 3,870,948,503.61
Revenue from real estate project for rental under
financial lease agreement 45,615,164.37  92,843,356.78 45,615,164.37  92,843,356.78
Revenue from land and builing - 2,800,000.00 = -
Sales promotion income 57,920,438.65  39,127,094.84 55,862,645.29  39,127,094.84
Excess of interest in the net-asset value of
subsidiary that-over purchase cost 17 30,969,464.56 - -
Others income 33 17,293,625.25  15,032,639.39 16,204,002.19  14,454,985.32
Total revenues 4,237,618,731.24 4,029,320,970.79 4,120,992,619.70 4,017,373,940.55
Cost of sales and services 3,766,935,344.73 3,588,715,062.06 3,688,380,298.10 3,581,117,269.77
Cost of real estate project for rental under
financial lease agreement 20,719,754.00 48,327,536.88 20,719,754.00 48,327,536.88
Cost of land and improvement - 2,581,001.00 - -
Selling expenses 78,667,061.42  58,058,322.68 78,661,796.16  57,946,647.35
Administrative expenses 141,483,543.77 126,225,430.12 = 121,017,310.31 121,675,221.48
Finance cost 34 89,916,018.23  103,207,196.25 86,131,402.01 102,246,835.31
Total expenses 4,097,721,722.15 3,927,114,548.99 3,994,910,560.58 3,911,313,510.79
Profit (loss) before income tax expenses 139,897,009.09 102,206,421.80  126,082,059.12 106,060,429.76
Income tax expenses 35 21,326,682.84  22,516,819.10 24,554,374.10  23,341,983.08
Profit (loss) from continuing operations 118,570,326.25  79,689,602.70  101,527,685.02  82,718,446.68
Profit (loss) for the year 118,5670,326.25  79,689,602.70  101,527,685.02  82,718,446.68
Other comprehensive income
Difference in exchange rates on translation
of financial statement 25,611.89 412,005.32 - -
Other comprehensive income for the year 25,611.89 412,005.32 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 118,595,938.14  80,101,608.02 101,527,685.02 82,718,446.68

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
For the year ended December 31, 2014

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statement
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
Profit (loss) attributable to
Shareholder of the parent 118,570,326.25  79,689,602.70
Non-controlling interest =
Total 118,670,326.25  79,689,602.70
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to
Shareholder of the parent 118,595,938.14 80,101,608.02
Non-controlling interest -
Total 118,595,938.14  80,101,608.02

Earning (loss) per share of equity attributable to the company
Basic earning (loss) per share 36 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03
Diluted earning (loss) per share 36 0.03 - 0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Consolidated financial statements

7T NZ

CORPORATION

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statement

2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before income tax expenses 139,897,009.09 102,206,421.80 = 126,082,059.12 106,060,429.76
Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net cash
provided from (used in) operating activities :
Depreciation 5,218,232.78 6,034,247.39 4,773,150.63 5,923,402.76
Amortization of leasehold land 10,265,772.54 3,874,050.56 597,411.41 1,463,582.43
Amortization of leasehold rights 2,065,162.65 2,359,387.04 2,065,162.65 2,359,387.04
Amortization of intangible assets 120,164.39 72,596.43 109,826.01 70,040.59
Revenue from real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement (45,615,164.37)  (92,843,356.78)  (45,615,164.37) (92,843,356.78)
Revenue from land and buildings - (2800,000.00) -
Cost of real estate project for rental under
financial lease agreement 20,719,754.00  50,039,757.62 20,719,754.00  50,039,757.62
Cost of land and improvement - 2,581,001.00 - -
(Gain) loss from unrealized foreign exchange 889,284.99 354,328.39 889,026.99 355,905.97
Loss from diminution values of inventories
(reverse) (185,303.41)  (1,843,938.31) (227,200.57)  (1,843,938.31)
Loss from obsolete inventories (reverse) 1,119,795.55 791,248.44 1,119,795.55 791,248.44
Reserve for goods return (reverse) (6,498,820.00) 4,380,773.89 (6,498,820.00) 4,380,773.89
Reserve for cost of returned goods (reverse) 2,402,049.75  (1,431,540.57) 2,402,049.75  (1,431,540.57)
Employee benefit expenses 1,242,757.00 985,694.00 1,175,970.00 973,214.00
Interest income (6,272,869.81)  (6,633,651.22)  (6,220,140.23)  (6,615,960.69)
Interest income from financial lease agreement (4,514,272.79)  (4,288,743.96) (4,514,272.79)  (4,288,743.96)
Finance cost 82,644,122.54  98,719,932.06 82,682,473.13  98,686,570.30
Finance cost of real estate development project
for rental under financial lease agreement 7,271,637.08 4,469,641.55 3,548,670.27 3,542,642.37
Amortized of finance cost under financial lease
liabilities 258.61 17,622.64 258.61 17,622.64

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statement

2014 2013 2014 2013
Earning (loss) from operations before changes
in operating asset and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable (1,887,222.15)  (77,424,728.02) 1,078,370.93 (77,424,728.02)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (107,709,595.36)  (62,067,619.35) (102,620,874.49) (62,067,619.35)
(Increase) decrease in Real estate development
project for sale (3,677,513.89) (3,677,513.89)
Cash payment for real estate development project
for rental under financial lease agreement (39,358,201.64) (14,437,185.92) - (6,759,755.55)
Cash received for real estate development project
for rental under financial lease agreement 43,053,909.48 78,877,978.50 43,053,909.48 78,877,978.55
(Increase) decrease in advance payment for goods (10,818,455.28) (17,759,617.09)  (10,818,455.28) (19,336,066.09)
Cash received for land and improvement - 2,800,000.00 =
(Increase) decrease in other current assets (8,919,124.29)  (2,340,796.97)  (21,606,635.54)  (2,612,315.83)
(Increase) decrease in guarantee for leasehold
rights and services (436,486.77) 4,801,792.47 (436,486.77) 4,801,792.47
(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets (479,702.44) (147,509.20) 73,763.15 (127,509.20)
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable 25,310,349.97 16,702,999.83 28,660,423.09 16,702,999.83
Cash received for advance received from real
estate project 23,284,868.46 7,879,934.22 - 1,500,000.00
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 3,793,879.43 (381,943.59) 3,939,249.14 773,066.59
Increase (decrease) in rental for real estate
recognized under financial lease agreement (5,154,733.14)  (4,012,217.25) (2,427,922.78)  (4,012,217.25)
Cash received (payment) from operating activities
Cash received form interest income 7,069,785.01 8,355,638.67 7,044,024.41 8,337,948.14
Cash received form interest income from financial
lease agreement 1,024,272.91 879,605.09 1,024,272.91 879,605.09
Cash received from income tax - 3,529,939.65 - 3,529,939.65
Cash payment form income tax expenses (18,663,440.98)  (3,769,666.72)  (18,113,295.59)  (3,490,342.49)
Cash payment for financial cost (85,329,422.66) (98,707,632.08)  (84,688,955.61) (98,676,167.32)
Excess of interest in the net-asset value of
subsidiary that-over purchase cost (30,969,464.56) -
Net cash provided (used) from operating activities 903,272.69 9,824,444.21 23,473,883.31 8537646.67

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statement

2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash flows from investment activities
Cash payment for investment in subsidiary company (24,999,175.35) (116,518,742.53) (201,000,000.00) (123,000,000.00)
Cash payment for fixed assets (11,679,520.95) (7,320,324.91)  (11,554,270.95) (7,281,137.99)

Cash payment for purchase intangible assets (335,801.14) (221,400.00) (324,315.00) (221,400.00)
Cash payment for land held for development
and equipment - (33,358,550.00) - (33,358,550.00)

(Increase) decrease in restricted bank deposit 1,209,494.96  (2,281,102.98) 2,409,682.00  (2,280,901.92)
Net cash provided (used) from investing activities (35,805,002.48) (159,700,120.42) (210,468,903.95) (166,141,989.91)
Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and short-term

loans from financial institutions (875,942,329.95) 328,131,037.78 (874,959,495.56) 328,132,087.07

Cash received from long-term loans 11,129,270.00 4,590,637.00 =

Cash received from long-term loans from related parties 8,147,902.18 5,703,653.11 -

Cash received from increase capital 1388,686,454.50 - 1,388,686,454.50 -

Cash payment from long-term loans (36,437,324.02) (377,885.95) -

Cash payment from long-term loans from related parties  (108,933,970.80) (11,070,000.00) - -

Cash payment for liabilities under financial lease liabilities (29,245.39) (535,745.36) (29,245.39) (535,745.36)

Cash payment for devidend payment (75,592,150.89) (5.40)  (75,592,150.89) (5.40)
Net cash provided (used) from financing activities 311,028,605.63  32,644,1691.2  438,105,562.66 327,596,336.31
Increase (decrease) difference in exchange rates

on translation of financial statement 25,611.89 412,005.32 - -
Effect from foreign exchange in cash and cash equivalents 536.50 51.60 536.50 51.60
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 276,153,024.23 176,978,071.89  251,111,078.53  169,992,044.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 221,844,984.77  44,866,912.88  210,322,156.45  40,330,111.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the ending of the year 497,998,009.00 221,844,984.77 461,433,234.98 210,322,156.45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note to Financial Statements

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary

For the year ended December 31, 2014

1.

General information

The company was registered as juristic entity in accordance with the code of civil and commercial law on
December 22, 1993, with juristic the registered no. (1) 2785/2536. Under the name of P.C. Communication
and Transport Co., Ltd. Then, on July 8, 2004, the company changed its name to TWZ Corporation Co., Ltd.
and the company became a public company limited on April 12, 2005, with the registered no.0107548000285
(formerly no. 0107574800285). Its head quarter is located at 3/1 Building no.1, 2" Floor, Baanprachaniwet 1,
Thetsaban Nimit Nuea Road, Ladyao, Chatuchak Bangkok.

The company conducts business as sale and distribution agents of mobile phones, spare parts and
accessories, as service center of telecommunication equipment and as counter service for payment of service

fee of GSM Cellular 900 and GSM 1800 system mobile phones.

On February 16, 2012, the company has register representative office in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of

China. The representative office will assist the company in managing cost and controlling quality of products.

For reporting purposes, the company and its subsidiary are referred as “the group”.

Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
(TFRS) under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543 being those Thai Accounting Standards issued under the

Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and

Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act.

The financial statements have been perpared under the historical cost convention except some

transactions are valued at fair price as disclosed in the accounting polices below.

An English version of the consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared from
the statutory financial statements that are issued in thai language. In the event of a conflict or a
difference in interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language statutory financial

statements shall prevail.

2.2  Presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht.
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Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements is

included in the following notes:
2.3.1 Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and

conditions of the arrangement

2.3.2 Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment
and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of

outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.

2.3.3 Allowance for impairment of inventory or land and improvement

The company estimates allowance for impairment of inventory or land with structure to reflect

the impairment of land with structure based on net realisable value.

2.3.4 Allowance for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories

The company maintains an allowance for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories to
reflect impairment of inventories. The allowance is based on consideration of inventory turnover

and deterioration of each category.

2.3.5 Impairment of assets

The Company treats assets as impaired when the management judges that there has been a
significant decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of

impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” requires

2.3.6 Building improvement and equipments/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of building improvement and equipments, the management is
required to make estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the company’s building
improvement and equipments and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when

there are any changes.
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In addition, the management is required to review property,building improvement and
equipments for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period
when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying cost. This
requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets

subject to the review

2.3.7 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of temporary differences only to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which these differences can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets

that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future profits.

2.3.8 Retirement employee benefits

The company has commitments on retirement benefits to employees under the Thai Labour
Law. The amount of provision presented in the statement of financial position represents the
present value of employee benefit obligations which is determined on an actuarial basis using
various assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net period cost for employee
benefits includes the discount rate, the rate of salary inflation and employee turnover and
others. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the net periodic cost recorded for
employee benefits. On an annual basis the company determines those assumptions i.e. the
appropriate discount rate, which should represent the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of future cash flows currently expected to be required to settle the
employee benefits. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the company considers the

current yields on long-term government bonds.

2.4  Basis of consolidation
2.41 The consolidated financial statements based on TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited

which has fully control.

2.4.2 Assets, liabilities, and financial performance of subsidiary company have been included in the

consolidated financial statement at acquisition date until liquidation date.

2.4.3 The related parties transactions have been eliminated from the consolidated financial

statements.

2.4.4 The consolidated financial statements including TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited and

its subsidiary company which were presented as followed :
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Percentage of shareholdings

As at December 31, Country of
Company’s name Type of business 2014 | 2013 incorporation
Subsidiary hold by directly
TWZ International Limited Supplier and distributor of mobile 100 100 Hong Kong
phones and all kinds of communication device
TZ Trading Co.,Ltd. Supplier and distributor of mobile 100 100 Thailand
phones and all kinds of communication device
Piyachart Co.,Ltd. Project development real estate for sale 100 100 Thailand
The Boxes Co., Ltd. Agent distributor of digital signal equipment 100 Thailand

During the year 2014, the company has register The Boxes Co.,Ltd, which details is described in note of

financial statements 17.

Percentage of shareholdings

As at December 31, Country of
Company’s name Type of business 2014 | 2013 incorporation
Subsidiary hold by Piyachart Co., Ltd.
Le Andaman Development
Co., Ltd. Project development real estate for sale 100 Thailand

During the year 2014 Piyachart Co., Ltd. has register Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd., which details is

described in note of financial statements 17.

2.45 The financial statements of subsidiary, all of which are juristic entities organized under foreign

laws and are treated as overseas units, are consolidated by converting the amounts incurred in

foreign currencies into Baht as follows:

Assets and liabilities in both monetary and non-monetary items are all converted at the

prevailing closing exchange rates at the end of the relevant accounting periods.

is received.

Share capital is converted at the prevailing exchange rate on the date such capital fund

Revenues and expenses are converted at the average exchange rate of each month.

2.4.6 Difference in exchange rate from translation of financial statement is presented as difference in

exchange rates on translation of financial statement under the shareholders’ equity.
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3. Accounting standards

3.1 Application of new accounting standards during the period

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the following accounting standards,financial reporting

standard and accounting standard interpretations that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or

after January 1, 2014.

Accounting Standards (TAS)

TAS 1

TAS 7

TAS 12
TAS 17
TAS 18
TAS 19
TAS 21
TAS 24
TAS 28
TAS 31
TAS 34
TAS 36
TAS 38

revised 2012
revised 2012
revised 2012
revised 2012
revised 2012

revised 2012

( )
( )
( )
( )
( )
( )
(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)
( )

revised 2012

Presentation of financial statement
Statement of cash flow

Income taxes

Leases

Revenue

Employee benefits

The effects of changes in foreign exchange rate
Related party disclosures
Investments in associates
Interests in joint venture

Interim financial reporting
Impairment of assets

Intangible assests

Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS)

TFRS 2
TFRS 3
TFRS 5

TFRS 8

(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)
(revised 2012)

(revised 2012)

Shared - bases payments

Business combinations

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

Operating segments

Accounting Standard Interpretation (TSIC)

TSIC 15
TSIC 27

TSIC 29
TSIC 32

Operating leases - incentives

Evaluating the substance of transactions in the legal
form of a lease

Service concession arrangements : disclosure

Intangible assets - web site costs

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations (TFRIC)

TFRIC 1

TFRIC 4
TFRIC 5
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Changes in existing decommissioning, restoration and
similar liabilities
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Right to interests arising from decommissioning,

restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds

Effective date
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
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TFRIC 7 Applying the restatement approach under TAS 29 January 1, 2014
financial reporting in hyperinflationary economics

TFRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment January 1, 2014

TFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements January 1, 2014

TFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes January 1, 2014

TFRIC 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners January 1, 2014

TFRIC 18 Transfers of assets from customers January 1, 2014

The management of the company has determined that the new accounting standards above will not

significantly impact the financial statements of the company in period applying these standards.

New accounting standards issued during the period and not yet effective

The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued notifications, already published in the Royal
Gazette, mandating the use of financial reporting standard, accounting standard interpretation and
financial reporting standard interpretations that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after

January 1, 2015 and 2016.

Accounting Standards (TAS)

Effective date

TAS 1 (revised 2014) Presentation of financial statements January 1, 2015
TAS 2 (revised 2014) Inventories January 1, 2015
TAS 7 (revised 2014) Statement of cash flows January 1, 2015
TAS 8 (revised 2014)  Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates January 1, 2015
and errors
TAS 10 (revised 2014) Events after the reporting period January 1, 2015
TAS 11 (revised 2014) Construction contract January 1, 2015
TAS 12 (revised 2014) Income taxes January 1, 2015
TAS 16  (revised 2014) Property, plant and equipment January 1, 2015
TAS 17 (revised 2014) Leases January 1, 2015
TAS 18 (revised 2014) Revenue January 1, 2015
TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee benefits January 1, 2015
TAS 20 (revised 2014) Accounting for government grants & disclosure of January 1, 2015
government assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2014) The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates January 1, 2015
TAS 23  (revised 2014) Borrowing costs January 1, 2015
TAS 24  (revised 2014) Related party disclosures January 1, 2015
TAS 26 (revised 2014) Accounting and reporting by retirement benefit plans January 1, 2015
TAS 27  (revised 2014) Separate financial statements January 1, 2015
TAS 28 (revised 2014) Investments in associates and joint ventures January 1, 2015
TAS 29 (revised 2014) Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies January 1, 2015
TAS 33 (revised 2014) Earnings per share January 1, 2015
TAS 34 (revised 2014) Interim financial reporting January 1, 2015
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TAS 36
TAS 37
TAS 38
TAS 40

revised 2014
revised 2014

( )
( )
(revised 2014)
( )

revised 2014

Impairment of assets
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Intangible assets

Investments property

Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS)

TFRS 2
TFRS 3
TFRS 4
TFRS 5

TFRS 6
TFRS 8
TFRS 10
TFRS 11
TFRS 12
TFRS 13

(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)

Share-based payment

Business combinations

Insurance contracts

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources

Operating segments

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interest in other entities

Fair value measurement

Accounting Standard Interpretation (TSIC)

TSIC 10

TSIC 15
TSIC 25

TSIC 27

TSIC 29
TSIC 31

TSIC 32

(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)

Government assistance - No specific relation to
operating activities

Operating leases - Incentives

Income taxes - changes in the tax status of an entity or
its shareholders

Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the
legal form of a lease

Service concession arrangements : Disclosures

Revenue - barter transactions involving advertising
services

Intangible assets - web site costs

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations (TFRIC)

TFRIC 1

TFRIC 4
TFRIC 5

TFRIC 7

(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)
(revised 2014)

(revised 2014)

TFRIC 10 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 12 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 13 (revised 2014)
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Changes in existing decommissioning, restoration and
similar liabilities

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds

Applying the restatement approach under TAS 29
financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Service concession arrangements

Customer loyalty programmes

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 16, 2015
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
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TFRIC 14 TAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, January 1, 2015
minimum funding

requirements and their interaction

TFRIC 15 (revised 2014) Agreements for the construction of real estate January 1, 2015
TFRIC 17 (revised 2014) Distributions of non-cash assets to owners January 1, 2015
TFRIC 18 (revised 2014) Transfers of assets from customers January 1, 2015
TFRIC 20 Stripping Cost in the Production phase of surface mine  January 1, 2015

The Group’s management is in the process of assessing the impacts of those accounting standards.

Significant changes in those new and revised accounting standards

Significant accounting policies

4.1

Revenue and expenses recognition

Revenues from sales of goods and services net of rebates, discount and output tax (if any).

Revenues from sales of goods are recognized when significant risk and rewards of ownership of the

goods are transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from the sale of merchandise consignment is recognized after the deduction of estimated

allowance of goods return and sales discount.
Revenues from services are recognized when the service is rendered.

Sales of real estate development project for sale are recognised as revenue when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, whereby construction works are
completed and the ownerships have been transferred to buyers after all payments received from the

buyers.

Revenue from Real Estate Project under Financial Lease Agreement is recognized when transfer all

the risks and significant rewards of ownership with the buyer.
Revenue from the sales promotion is recognized on accrual basis after the approval by vendor.
Revenues from interest are recognized by timing which concern the effective interest rate.

Interest Income under Financial Lease Agreement is recognized on effective interest rate method in

accordance with the lease period of contract.

In determining the cost of real estate development project for sale sold, the anticipated total
development costs (taking into account actual costs incurred to date) are attributed to real estate
development project for sale sold on the basis of the salable area and then recognised as costs in the

income statement concurrently with revenue from sales.

Development costs are stated at cost, consisting of cost of land, design fees, utilities, construction and

related interest. (if any)

Cost of sales and expenses are recognized by accrual basis of accounting.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried on the statement of financial position at cost. Cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call at banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are not used as

collateral.

Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable are initially recorded at cost but later stated at net realizable value.

The company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated collection losses
that may be incurred in the collection of all receivables. Allowance for Doubtful Debt is estimated from
aging evaluation of trade accounts receivable in proportion of debt settlement received after the date

of accounting closing as follows:

Aging of Account Receivable Overdue Rate of Estimated Allowance for Doubtful Debt
1-90 Days 0.5%
More than 90 Days 100%

Doubtful accounts and bad debts during the year are selling and administratives expenses which

recognized in statement of income.

Estimated cost of goods return

Estimated cost of goods return is computed from sales volume which the customers are entitled to

return.

Account receivables of real estate project under financial lease agreement

Account receivables of real estate project under financial lease agreement are showed at net
realizable value, finance lease interest and unearned interest income shown as a deduction from a

finance lease receivables.

Inventories
Finished goods are valued at the lower of moving average cost and net realizable value.

The net realisable value is from an estimate of selling price in the ordinary course of business, minus

the costs of completion and selling expenses.

The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and direct cost which related to that
purchasing expenses, such as transportation charge less all attributable discounts and allowances or

rebates (if any).
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The Company shall set aside allowance for obsolete inventories by calculating at the higher of mark-
to-market price or inventory aging value. Allowance for obsolete inventories shall be established

according to following criteria:

Aging of inventories Rate of estimate allowance for obsolete inventories
181 - 270 Days 25%
271 - 365 Days 50%

More than 365 Days 100%

Estimation of Cost of Goods Return

Estimation of cost of goods return is computed by multiplying the average rate of cost of sales with the

sales volume, which is liable to the returning of goods from customers.

Real estate development project for sale

Real estate development project for sale in progress are stated at cost less provision for loss on

diminution in value of projects. The details of cost calculation are as follows: -
Land
Cost of land using the weighted average method, calculating it separately for each project.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress consists of the cost of construction, public utility costs and interest capitalised

to cost of projects by records cost of construction and public utilities based on the actual cost incurred.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary company dertakings are accounted for in the company financial statements

by using the cost method of accounting less an allowance for impairment in value. Under the cost
method (if any), income from investments in subsidiaries and associate conpany will be recorded when

dividends are declared.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
When assessing whether the contro; controls another entity, the company considers the existence and
effect of voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting right which
held by other entities. The company consolidated financial statement of subsidiaries from the date on
which control is transferred to the company and are no longer consolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,

the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by theGroup. The consideration transferred
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4.10

includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilitiesassumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of

the acquiree’s net assets

General investment are investments in non-marketable equity securities which are classified as

general investment carriedat cost less an allowance for impairment in value (if any).

Held-to-maturity investment are stated by amoretize cost menthod under effective rate.

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified asheld-to-maturity and are included in non-current assets, except for maturities within 12

months from the balance sheet date whichare classified as current assets.

Purchase and sales of investment are recognized on the trade date, which is the date that the

company commits to purchase or sell the investment. Cost of investment includes transaction costs.

A test for impairment in carried out when there is a indicating factor that an investment might be
impaired. If the carring value of the investment is higher than its recoverable amount, impairment loss

is charged to the statement of income.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carring
amount is charged or credited to the statement of income. When disposing of part of the company of
a particular investment in debt or equity securities, the carring amount of the disposed part is

determined by the weight average carring amount of the total holding of the investment.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recorded at cost, which equals to the excess of cost of business combination over
the fair value of the net assets acquired. If the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds the cost of

business combination, the excess is immediately recognised as gain in profit or loss.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment

annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the Company’s cash generating units (or group of cash-generating units) that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. The Company estimates the recoverable amount of
each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future

periods.
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Land held for development

Land held for development is stated at cost. It is consisted of cost of land and related expenses

Building Improvement and Equipment

Building improvement and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance

for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of each asset, to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows :

Percentage per annum

- Building Improvement 5 Years
- Tool and Equipment 5 Years
- Office Equipment 5 Years
- Office Furniture 5 Years
- Vehicle 5 Years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written

down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

recognised within “other gains or losses, net” in profit or loss.

Real Estate Development Project for Rental under Financial Lease Agreement

Real estate development project for rental under financial lease agreement is showed at cost, which
consisted of cost of land development, costs of constructions of building and rental under financial

lease agreement.

Leasehold rights

Leasehold rights is recorded at cost and deducted by accumulated amortization and leasehold rights

shall be amortized in accordance with the lease period of each contract.
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4.15

4.16

4.17

Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised as intangible assets on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their

estimated useful lives 5 years.

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and will not revalued. The carrying amount of each intangible
asset is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment where it is considered as necessary.
Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable

amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit

exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed for the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

Lessor

Where the company is the lessor

The lease agreement was classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership. And assets held under finance leases are recognized in the
statements of financial position as account receivables of real estate project under financial lease

agreement.
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Revenue from real estate project under financial lease agreement recognized at the commencement of
the lease agreement by a lessor is the fair value of the assets, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments ‘accruing to the lessor, computed at a market rate of interest. The cost of
real estate project under financial lease agreement recognized at the commencement of the lease
agreement is the cost, or carrying amount (if carrying amount different from cost of real estate project)
The difference between the revenue and. the cost of real estate project under financial lease
agreement is the profit from real estate project under financial lease ‘agreement, which is recognized

in accordance with the accounting policy for normal sales.

Where the company is the lessee

Long term leases which substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair

value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments.

The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payable.

The interest element of the financial cost is charged to the profit and loss.

The assets acquired under finance leases while depreciation is carried throughout the useful.
life of leased asset. However, if there is uncertainly in the right of ownership when the contract is
terminated, depreciation is carried according to useful life of leased assets or life of leased contract

whichever the period is lower.

Long term leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payment made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to
be made to the lesser by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which

termination takes places.

Employees benefit

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are

recognized as expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The parent company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly
contributed by employees and by the company. The fund’s assets are separate from trust fund and the

company and recognised as expenses when incurred.
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4.19

4.20

4.21

Defined benefit plans

The group has obligations in respect of the severance payments which paid to employees when their
retirement have incurred under labor law. The company and its subsidiaries treats these severance

payment obligationsas a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent
actuary, using the projected unit credit method. Such determination is made based on various
assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, staff turnover rate, mortality rate, and

inflation rates.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in other

comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in profit or loss.

Provision

Provision are recognized when the group company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimation of the amount can be made. Where the company expects a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is

virtually certain.

Financial instrument

Financial assets carried on the balance sheet include cash and deposits at financial institution, trade
accounts receivable, prepaid expense. Financial liabilities carried on the statement of financial position
include short-term loans from financial institutions, trade account payable and long-term loans. The
particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual accounting policy statements

associated with each item.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements and separate financial statementse are presented in Thai Baht,

which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Thai Baht using the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated
to Thai Baht at the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Gains and

losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions, and from the translation of
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monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the profit or loss.

The statements of comprehensive income and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the
Group’s reporting currency at the weighted average exchange rates for the month and statement of
financial position are translated at the exchange rates ruling on the end of reporting period. Currency
translation differences arising from the retranslation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated exchange differences are

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale

Earnings (loss) per share

Primary earnings (loss) per share

Primary earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net profit (loss) with weighted average the

number of issued and paid-up shares.

Diluted earning (loss) per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The company has dilutive
potential ordinary shares are warrants for existing shareholder. The convertible share is assumed to
have been converted into ordinary shares. For the warrant, a calculation is made to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. (Determine from average price of ordinary
shares of the company shares in these periods.) The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
warrant. The difference is added to the denominator as an issue of ordinary shares for no

consideration. No adjustment is made to earnings.

Legal reseve
Parent company

Section 116 of the public companies Act B.E. 2535 requires that the company shall allocate not less
than 5 percent of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve
account (“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered

authorized capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Domestic subsidiary company

The subsidiary companies shall allocate not less 5 percent of its annual net profit each time a dividend
is declared, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”) until the reserve reaches 10 percent of authorized

share capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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4.24

4.25

Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the

shareholders.

Income tax

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation

authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at

the end of the reporting period or highly probable to be effective at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences : the initial recognition of
goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss ; and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The group company recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they
recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible

temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the group company review and reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The group company record deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items that

are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a

net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Operating segments

Operating Segments is requires the presentation and disclosure of segment information based on the
internal reports regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating decision maker in order to assess

each segment’s performance and to allocate resources to those segments.

Management benefit expenses

Management benefit expenses represents the benefits paid to the company’s management such as

salaries and related benefit including the benefit paid by other means

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised

as part of the cost of the respective assets.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of

interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Capitalisation rates are calculated based on the weighted average of the interest expenses incurring

during the year on loans for development of projects. (if any)

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether

directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in

the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors,

and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations

The followings are relationships with enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the

Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company

Relationships between the related parties were as follows:

Company’s name and related persons Relationship

TWZ INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Subsidiary company by direct holding
TZ Trading Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company by direct holding
Piyachart Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company by direct holding
The Boxes Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company by direct holding
Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary hold by Piyachart Co.,Ltd.
Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri Director and shareholder

Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri Director
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The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below :

Transactions Pricing policy
Revenue from sales With reference to market prices
Purchases With reference to market prices
Management income 2% of revernues from sales and services

5.1  Asset and liability with related entities as follows :

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Transactions with subsidiary
TWZ International Limited
Advance payment = - = 51,096.16
Advance receipts - - 51,402.00 25,041.16
TZ Trading Co., Ltd.
Trade account receivables - - 76,799.98
Advance payment - - 11,740,470.33 278,601.00
Accrued income - - 1,735,944.15
Trade accounts payable - - 11,589,415.85
Advance receipts - - 1,651,613.00
Transactions with subsidiary
The Boxes Co., Ltd.
Advance payment - - 28,780.00
Transactions with related party and related person
Long-term loan from related parties
Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri
Balance as of beginning 80,952,091.72  86,318,438.61 =
Increase 8,147,902.18 5,7083,653.11 -
Decrease (87,967,970.80)  (11,070,000.00) -
Balance as of ending 1,132,023.10 80,952,091.72 - -

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013 the long-term loan from related persons was in the loan

agreement, did not interest, and repayable on calland
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(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,

2014 | 2013 | 2014 | 2013
Transactions with subsidiary
TZ Trading Co., Ltd.
Revenues from sales - - 141,401.84 -
Purchases - - 4,350,271.91 -
Management income = - 1,735,944.15 -
5.3  Management benefit expenses
((Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,

2014 |

2013

2014

2013

Short term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

14,361,305.48
849,147.00

14,508,591.04
668,328.00

14,361,305.48
849,147.00

14,508,591.04
668,328.00

Total

15,210,452.48

15,176,919.04

15,210,452.48

15,176,919.04

6. Additional information of expenses by nature
Additional information of expenses by nature were shown :
((Unit : Baht)
For the years ended December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

6.1 Changes in inventories of finished goods (108,789,974.46) (61,495,944.97) (104,300,853.59) (61,495,944.97)
6.2 Loss from declined value of inventories (Reversal) 934,492.14  (1,052,689.87) 892,594.98  (1,052,689.87)
6.3 Purchase inventories net 3,874,790,827.05 3,651,263,696.90 3,791,788,556.71 3,643,665,904.61
6.4 Purchase of land and payment of construction during

the year 43,035,715.53 14,437,185.92 3,677,513.89 6,759,755.55
6.5 Changes in land and project (25,532,972.48) 21,591,220.93 13,825,229.16  26,687,650.30
6.6 Employee benefit expenses 114,637,912.67  91,235,829.00  110,428,800.49  90,366,822.81
6.7 Depreciation 5,218,232.78 6,034,247.39 4,773,150.63 5,923,402.76
6.8 Amortized leasehold rights 19,225,460.03 21,113,568.63 9,657,098.90  18,703,,100.50
6.9 Amortized intangible assets 120,164.39 72,596.43 109,826.01 70,040.59
6.10 Operating and service lease expenses 38,921,386.49  36,862,217.57 38,921,386.49  36,862,217.57
6.11 Sales promotion expenses 2,989,388.28 2,817,846.59 2,989,388.28 2,817,846.59
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Additional information of cash flow statements
Parent company

The transaction of non cash items of cash flow statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 which were

materialities were shown as follows :

- Unbilled on Account Receivables of Real Estate Project under Financial Lease Agreement not yet due

Baht 48.30 Million.

- Account receivables of real estate project under financial lease agreement decreasing from advance

reciept amount Baht 0.30 Million.
- Unbilled on real estate development project for rental under financial lease agreement not yet due
Baht 38.17 Million.
The transaction of non cash items of cash flow statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 which
were materialities were shown as follows :

- Unbilled on Account Receivables of Real Estate Project under Financial Lease Agreement not yet due

Baht 46.04 Million.

- Account receivables of real estate project under financial lease agreement decreasing from advance

reciept amount Baht 4.15 Million.

- Unbilled on real estate development project for rental under financial lease agreement not yet due

Baht 40.60 Million.

Subsidiary company

The transaction of non cash items of cash flow statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

which were materialities were shown as follows :

- Unbilled on real estate development project for rental under financial lease agreement not yet due

Baht 42.87 Million. And Baht 45.59 Million.respectively.

8.  Cash and cash equivalents
(Unit : Baht)
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Cash 3,930,709.81 1,193,265.96 3,305,040.56 1,047,675.92
Bank - saving accounts 286,076,857.47 107,739,886.78 =~ 277,091,167.63 100,552,697.70
Bank - current accounts 190,072,517.13  103,667,888.28 = 181,023,655.15  99,477,839.08
Bank - fixed accounts 17,917,924.59 9,243,943.75 13,371.64 9,243,943.75

Total 497,998,009.00 221,844,984.77 461,433,234.98 210,322,156.45

Cash at banks has interest at the floating rate accounting to the rates the bank determines.
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The group company has aging analysis of trade accounts receivable are as follows :

As at December 31,

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Recourse trade account receivables 1,644,618.26 8,598,355.66 1,644,618.26 8,598,355.66
Trade account receivables :
In due 436,079,619.22  536,688,756.06 = 435,574,419.20 53,668,8756.06
Over due :
1 - 30 Days 207,048,670.67 153,369,265.10  204,598,507.61 153,369,265.10
31 - 60 Days 54,019,932.04 7,139.00 54,013,632.04 7,139.00
61 - 90 Days 1,818,991.80 180,326.00  1,815,061.80 180,326.00
More than 91 Days 202,079.98 82,848.00 202,079.98 82,848.00
Total 700,813,911.97 698,926,689.82  697,848,318.89 698,926,689.82
Less Allowance for doubtful debt (17,590.00) (17,590.00) (17,590.00) (17,590.00)
Estimated goods return (1,644,618.26)  (8,598,355.66) ~ (1,644,618.26)  (8,598,355.66)
Trade account receivables-net 699,151,703.71  690,310,744.16  696,186,110.63 690,310,744.16
10. Account receivables of real estate project under financial lease agreement-net
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

2014 2013 2014 | 2013
Account receivables of real estate project under financial
lease agreement 110,183,088.15 100,855,753.66 = 110,183,088.15 100,855,753.66
Less Defered interest income from financial lease agreement ~ (61,885,656.84) (54,819,577.24)  (61,885,656.84) (54,819,577.24)
Current portion of account receivables of real estate
project under financial lease agreement (8,050,599.99) (4,987,723.26 (3,050,599.99)  (4,987,723.26)

Net 45,246,831.32

41,048,453.16

45,246,831.32

41,048,453.16

The aggregate minimum lease receives under long - term lease agreements as follows :

As at December 31,

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Less than 1 year 3,859,244.77 5,972,951.52 3,859,244.77 5,972,951.562
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 17,369,117.44 14,224,161.84 17,369,117.44 14,224,161.84
More than 5 year 88,954,725.94  80,658,640.30 88,954,725.94  80,658,640.30
Total 110,183,088.15 100,855,753.66  110,183,088.15 100,855,753.66
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11. Inventories-net

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Mobile phones and accessories 1,121,072,876.10 1,016,294,258.22 1,115,984,155.23 1,016,294,258.22
Spare part for repairing 6,891,586.44 3,960,608.96 6,891,586.44 3,960,608.96
Total 1,127,964,462.54 1,020,254,867.18 1,122,875,741.67 1,020,254,867.18
Add  Estimated cost for goods return 966,544.90 3,368,594.65 966,544.90 3,368,594.65
Total 1,128,931,007.44 1,023,623,461.83 1,123,842,286.57 1,023,623,461.83
Less Allowance for diminution value
of inventories (4,624,469.41) (4,809,772.82) (4,582,572.25) (4,809,772.82)
Allowance for obsolete inventories (22,133,554.25) (21,013,758.70) = (22,133,554.25) (2,101,3758.70)
Net 1,102,172,983.78 997,799,930.31 1,097,126,160.07 997,799,930.31

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the group and the company recognized loss and reverse allowance
from the net realisable value being lower than cost in the consolidated and company statements of
comprehensive income amounting to Baht 934,492.14 and Baht 892,594.98 respectively (2013 : Baht
1,052,689.87 and Baht 1,052,689.87 respectively).

12. Real estate development project for rental under financial lease agreement

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at

December Purchase / Sale/ December

31, 2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31,2014
Building 17,897,474.97 - (9,264,575.27) 8,632,899.70
Building in construction 44,589,186.86  37,228,796.25 - 81,817,983.11
Rental under financial lease agreement 50,110,354.11 - (4,560,653.89)  45,549,700.22
Finance cost 747,423.59 2,129,405.39 - 2,876,828.98
Total 113,344,439.53  39,358,201.64 (13,825,229.16) 138,877,412.01

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at
December Purchase / Sale/ December
31, 2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31,2014
Building 17,897,474.97 - (9,264,575.27) 8,632,899.70
Rental under financial lease agreement 8,810,354.11 - (4,560,653.89) 4,249,700.22
Total 26,707,829.08 - (13,825,229.16) 12,882,599.92
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Parent company

Rental under Financial Lease Agreement

The benefit from the use of land acquired by lease of land and buildings for the provision of benefits. It's
recognizing by the present value of the minimum rental to be paid and discounted by interest rate 7.2511%
per annual. By the end of the period of the lease of land and buildings agreement beginning on May 1, 2012

to August 14, 2031, in Note 19.

Subsidiary company

Rental under Financial Lease Agreement

The benefit from the use of land acquired by lease of land and buildings for the provision of benefits. It's
recognizing by the present value of the minimum rental to be paid and discounted by interest rate 7.2511%
per annual. By the end of the period of the lease of land and buildings agreement beginning on November 1,

2012 to August 14, 2031, in Note 19.

13. Real estate development project for sale
(Unit : Baht)
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 | 2013 2014 | 2013
Land 118,120,212.93 2,120,212.93 30,000,000.00
Cost of development project
(Construction expenses) 17,384,832.65 10,348,768.76 7,036,063.89 -

Total 135,505,045.58 12,468,981.69 37,036,063.89 -
Less Allowance for loss on decline

in value of projects. (2,144,982.62) (2,144,982.62) - -

Net 133,360,062.96 10,323,999.07 37,036,063.89 -

14. Advance payment for goods-net

As at December 31,

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 |

2013

2014 | 2018

Advance payment for goods

Less Allowance for doubtful debt

276,301,669.66  265,483,214.38

(729,048.00)

(729,048.00)

276,301,669.66 265,483,214.38
(729,048.00) (729,048.00)

Net

275,572,621.66 264,754,166.38

275,572,621.66 264,754,166.38

Advance payment for goods was the payment in advance according to normal commercial condition, which

the company agreed with manufacturers and distributors of mobile phones and accessories.
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15. Other current assets-net

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Purchase VAT to claim 3,428,271.26 5,181,451.21 3,419,640.54 5,178,088.53
Accounts receivable-Revenue Department 511,357.13 284,077.52 284,077.52 284,077.52
Prepaid expenses 2,972,363.03 2,648,740.60 2,516,769.05 2,369,392.10
Accrued sale promotion income 14,304,527.58 4,938,938.76 14,273,629.75 4,938,938.76
Accrued interest income 12,246,262.72 9,5653,178.04 12,219,293.74 9,553,178.04
Others 2,606,525.26 2,204,866.24 15,558,671.55 2,463,225.50
Total 36,069,306.98  24,811,252.37 48,272,082.15  24,786,900.45

Less Allowance for doubtful debt - accrued income (190,896.93) (190,896.93) (190,896.93) (190,896.93)
Allowance for doubtful debt-others (339,077.52) (339,077.52) (339,077.52) (339,077.52)

Net 35,539,332.53 24,281,277.92 47,742,107.70 24,256,926.00

16. Restricted bank deposit
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Bank - saving accounts 20,055,668.08  24,055481.04  20,000,000.00  24,000,000.00
Bank - fixed accounts 353,800,000.00 351,009,682.00  352,600,000.00 351,009,682.00
Total 373,855,668.08 375,065,163.04  372,600,000.00 375,009,682.00

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the company pledged a fixed deposit as collateral for the credit facility

from commercial banks and finance institutions as specified in accordance as disclosed in the notes 23.

17. Investments in subsidiary company

17.1 Investments in subsidiary company register in oversea as follows :

Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Unit : HKD) (Unit : Baht)
Registered Issued and paid | Percentage of
Company’ name share capital up capital investment (%) Cost
TWZ International Limited 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 100 3,958,069.00
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17.2 Investments in subsidiary company register in Thailand as follows :

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2014 and 2013

Registered Issued and paid | Percentage of
Company’ name share capital up capital investment (%) Cost
TZ Trading Co., Ltd. 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 100 3,000,000.00

From the minutes of the Board of Director meeting no.6/2013 held on September 16, 2013, the meeting
unanimously approved to incorporate a new subsidiary, TZ Trading Co., Ltd., with Baht 3 Million of registered
capital comprising of 300,000 shares at par value of Baht 10 per share. The company will invest 100% on the
new subsidiary’s stake. The nature of the new subsidiary is to import, export, resell, and provide after sell
service for mobile phone and its accessory, computer, and other electronic goods. The new subsidiary has

been registered with the Ministry of Commerce on September 20, 2013.

(Unit : Baht)
Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2014
Registered Issued and paid | Percentage of
Company’ name share capital up capital investment (%) Cost
Piyachart Co., Ltd. 250,000,000.00  250,000,000.00 100  320,000,000.00

From the minutes of board of director meeting no. 5/2014 dated August 13, 2014, the meeting unanimously
approved to increase registered capital of Piyachart Co., Ltd., a subsidiary held 100% by the company, from
Baht 50 millions to Baht 250 millions. A subsidiary has registered the increment with Ministry of Commerce on

October 28, 2014.

(Unit : Baht)
Separate financial statements as at December 31, 2013
Registered Issued and paid | Percentage of
Company’ name share capital up capital investment (%) Cost
Piyachart Co., Ltd. 50,000,000.00  50,000,000.00 100 120,000,000.00

From the minutes of extraordinary shareholders meeting no.1/2013 held on August 26, 2013, the meeting
approved the company to purchase 49,998 shares of Piyachart co., Ltd. from RT Holding Co., Ltd. And

Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd., which is accounted for 100% of total registered share capital, for Baht 120 Million.

As at October 1, 2013, RT Holding Co., Ltd. and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. have arranged shares transfer

contract for the company.

During 2013, the company has entered into a stock purchase and a repurchase agreement with RT Holding

Co., Ltd. and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. as follows :
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Stock purchase agreement

The company has entered into a contract to purchase Piyachart Co., Ltd.’s stock with RT Holding Co., Ltd.
and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. at Baht 120 Million. The seller must delever share certificate, transfering

documents, and other documents requested by the buyer, in order to confirm the right of the buyer.

Stock repurchase agreement

The company has entered into a contract to purchase Piyachart Co., Ltd.’s stock with RT Holding Co., Ltd.

and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. on the following conditions.

The seller prevailed the right to ask buyer to return all stock if the accumulated net profit for the period
2013 - 2016 is less than Baht 150 Million. If such right is exercised, the buyer must repurchase stock and pay
within 1 month after the seller filed annual report 2016 through SET system. Intercompany liability and

transactions, if any, must be cleared before the repurchase.

The buyer agreed to repurchase 49,998 shares at Baht 120 Million. The dividend received before the

repurchase will netted out from the payment.

If there were outstanding loan from the seller to the company for project operation, and there was a

repurchase, the company must immedietely repay the principle and interest at the date of repurchase.

As at October 1, 2013, the company obtained control over the subsidiary as all shares have been transferred

to the company with conditions as mentioned above.

In accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standard the company is required to estimate the fair value of
assets, liabilities, and specifiable contingent liabilities of Piyachart Co., Ltd. Hence, the company has to
compare investment cost to interest in assets, liabilities, and specifiable contingent liabilities of Piyachart
Co., Ltd. The investment was made on October 1, 2013. During 2013, the company engaged the company to
evaluate the fair value of acquiring assets which are land with structure, leasehold right, and construction in
progress of financial leasable real estate project of Piyachart Co., Ltd., the company received valuation report

issued, the comapny recognized the difference between the fair value and cost of acquiring as “Goodwill.”

As at October 1, 2013 the book value and fair value of specifiable assets and liabilities were as follows.

(Unit : Baht)
Cash and cash equivalent 3,481,257.47
Land and improvement - net 12,905,000.07
Real estate development project for rental under financial lease agreement 78,959,180.08
Other current assets 190,015.75
Restricted bank deposit 55,279.98
Land held for development 23,625,000.00
Leasehold land - net 172,865,000.00
Equipments-net 1,058,483.97
Intangible assets - net 33,768.06
Deferred tax assets 2,262,539.35
Total assets 295,435,524.73
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(Unit : Baht)
Bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions (983,883.69)
Current portion of long-term loans (774,659.97)
Current portion of liabilities underfinancial lease agreement (2,726,810.36)
Advance received from real estate project (9,819,407.91)
Other current liabilities (7,795,021.87)
Long-term loans-net (20,320,643.00)
Long-term loan from related parties (86,318,438.61)
Rental for real estate recognized under financial lease agreement - net (42,868,088.24)
Employee benefit obligation (250,014.00)
Deferred tax liabilities (22,156,541.11)
Total liabilities (194,013,508.76)
Net assets value 101,422,015.97
Add  Goodwill 18,577,984.03
Purchase investments in subsidiary company as at October 1, 2013 120,000,000.00
Less Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary (3,481,257.47)
Total purchase investment as at October 1, 2013 116,518,742.53
(Unit : Baht)
Separate financial statements as at September 30, 2014
Registered Issued and paid | Percentage of
Company’ name share capital up capital investment (%) Cost
The Boxes Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 100 1,000,000.00

According to the board of directors meeting no. 3/2014 held on May 14, 2014 unanimously resolved to

establish The Boxes Co., Ltd. with Baht 1,000,000 of the registered capital, main business Agent distributor of

digital signal equipment and also the TWZ was 100% ownership and the company has registered with the

Ministry of Commerce on May 20, 2014.

The company invest in the The Boxes Co., Ltd. on May 20, 2014, The Boxes Co., Ltd. has registered share

capital amount Baht 1,000,000 and call paid- up share capital amount 100,000 shares, at par value of Baht 10

each, and the company pay paid- up share capital above already.

Subsidiary hold by Piyachart Co., Ltd.

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2014

Registered Issued and paid | Percentage of
Company’ name share capital up capital investment (%) Cost
Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd. 25,000,000.00  25,000,000.00 100  25,000,000.00
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From the minutes of board of director meeting no. 5/2014 dated 13 August 2014,the meeting unanimously
approved Piyachart Co., Ltd. to invest in 100% stake of Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd. amounting to
Baht 25 millions, comprising of 250,000 common shares at Baht 100 par value. The share was pruchased

from former shareholder and was fully paid on October 14 2014.

As at August 18, 2014, Piyachart Co., Ltd. entered into a share purchase agreement with Le Andaman

Development Co., Ltd. The detail of the contract are as follow:

Piyachart (Buyer) entered into an agreement to purchase common shares of Le Andaman Development
Co., Ltd. (Seller) at the price of Baht 25 millions. The buyer must repay seller’s short-term loan as report on
financial statement as of 30 September 2014 with the limit of Baht 22 million. The buyer will become a new
creditor of the seller. The buyer must pay Baht 5 million deposit for common share purchase within 21 August
2014, the rest will be sattled within October 2014, where the seller will then deliver documents related to the

transfer of rights and commonshares to the buyer.

In accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standard the company is required to estimate the fair value of
assets, liabilities, and specifiable contingent liabilities of Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd. Hence, the
company has to compare investment cost to interest in assets, liabilities, and specifiable contingent liabilities
of Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd. The investment was made on September 30, 2014. During 2014, the
company engaged the company to evaluate the fair value of acquiring assets which are real estate
development project for sale of Le Andaman Development Co., Ltd., the company received valuation report
issued, the comapny recognized the difference between the fair value and cost of acquiring as “Excess of

interest in the net-asset value of subsidiary that-over purchase cost .”

As at September 30,2014 the book value and fair value of specifiable assets and liabilities were as follows.

(Unit : Baht)
Cash and cash equivalent 824.65
Real estate development project for sale 86,000,000.00
Other current assets 39.91
Total assets 86,000,864.56
Loan from related parties 20,966,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities 9,065,400.00
Total liabilities 30,031,400.00
Net assets value 55,969,464.56
Add  Excess of interest in the net-asset value of subsidiary that-over purchase cost (30,969,464.56)
Purchase investments in subsidiary company as at September 30, 2014 25,000,000.00
Less Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary 824.65
Total purchase investment as at September 30, 2014 24,999,175.35
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Parent company

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had assets with the depreciation fully calculated but still in
use which had a cost of Baht 77.93 Million and Baht 63.22 Million respectively. The net book value of which
was Baht 2,095 and Baht 1,525 respectively.

Subsidiary company

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had assets with the depreciation fully calculated but still in
use which had a cost of Baht 5,778.00. The net book value of which was Baht 2.00.

19. Leasehold land-net

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at
December Purchase / Sale/ December
31,2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31,2014
Leasehold land 191,151,179.07 - (9,465,786.80) 181,685,392.27
Less Accumulated amortization (6,951,001.26) (10,265,772.55) 2,571,261.97 (14,645,511.84)
Net 184,200,177.81 (10,265,772.55) (6,894,524.83) 167,039,880.43
(Unit : Baht)
Separate financial statements
Balance as at Balance as at
December Purchase / Sale/ December
31, 2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31, 2014
Leasehold land 18,286,179.07 - (9,465,786.80) 8,820,392.27
Less Accumulated amortization (4,540,533.13) (597,411.42) 2,571,261.97  (2,566,682.58)
Net 13,745,645.94 (597,411.42) (6,894,524.83) 6,253,709.69

Amortization as shown in statements of comprehensive income

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,

2014 | 2013 | 2014 | 2013
Recognized in administrative expenseson amount 10,265,772.54 3,874,050.56 597,411.41 1,463,582.43
Recognized on cost of real estate project for rental under
financial lease agreement 6,894,524.84  16,592,351.77 6,894,524.84  16,592,351.77
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19.

Leasehold land-net (continue)
Parent company

According to the resolution of Board of Director (BOD) meeting No. 2/2008, dated February 27, 2008,
the BOD has approved the investment plan in real estate project by acquiring a leasehold rights from a
non-related company in order to entering a contract with State Railway Thailand to lease 6,126 square meters
land. Later in the BOD meeting No. 3/2008, dated March 24,2008, the BOD has provided the ratification to

approve the aforementioned lease.

The Company entered into an aforesaid direct leasehold contract with State Railway of Thailand and the
rights of leasehold has been completely transferred to the Company since March 11, 2008. The value of
transferred rights is not higher than the official appraisal value which is evaluated by market comparison
approach and income approach according to leasehold appraisal reportin 2005 by an independent appraiser,

providing by the rights transferred company.
Leasehold rights consists of 2 leasehold agreements as follows;

Agreements No.1 Land leasehold agreement for construction, commenced from March 10, 2008 until October
31, 2010 for the period of 2 years 7 months and 21 days. Next time State Railway of Thailand has approved

the extension of construction period as follows:

On November 9, 2009; State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for

another 1 year and 6 months,starting from November 1, 2010 to April 30, 2012.

On July 24, 2012; State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for 8 months,

starting from May 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

The company recognized rental from Land leasehold agreement for constructionis is expenses with the lease

period of contract.

Agreements No.2 Land and property leasehold agreement, commenced from November 1, 2010 to August
14, 2031 for the period of 20 years 9 months and 14 days. Next time State Railway of Thailand has approved

the extension of construction period as follows:

On November 9, 2009; State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for
another 1 year and 6 months,starting from November 1, 2010 to April 30, 2012 this leasehold agreement shall
also be postponed to start from May 1, 2012 to August 14, 2031 for the period of 19 years 3 months and
14 days.

On July 24, 2012; State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for 8 months,
this leasehold agreement shall also be postponed to start from January 1, 2013 to August 14, 2031 for the

period of 18 years 7 months and 14 days.

The company recognized rental from Land and property leasehold agreement in account Real estate

development project for rental under financial lease agreement

Annuval Report 2014
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Subsidiary company

Leasehold rights consists of 2 leasehold agreements as follows;

Agreements No.1 Land leasehold agreement for construction, commenced from March 10, 2008 until October
31, 2010 for the period of 2 years 7 months and 21 days. Next time State Railway of Thailand has approved

the extension of construction period as follows:

On November 9, 2009; State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for

another 1 year and 6 months,starting from November 1, 2010 to October 31, 2012.

The company recognized rental from Land leasehold agreement for constructionis is expenses with the lease

period of contract.

Agreements No.2 Land and property leasehold agreement, commenced from November 1, 2010 to August
14, 2031 for the period of 20 years 9 months and 14 days.Next time State Railway of Thailand has approved

the extension of construction period as follows:

On November 9, 2009; State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for
another 1 year and 6 months, starting from November 1, 2010 to April 30, 2012. this leasehold agreement
shall also be postponed to start from November 1, 2012 to August 14, 2031 for the period of 18 years
9 months and 14 days.

The company recognized rental from Land and property leasehold agreement in account Real estate

development project for rental under financial lease agreement

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, a subsidiary has used leasehold right of the land for guaranteeing the

loan from commercial bank and financial institution as described in note 23.

20. Leasehold rights-net
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/Separate financial statements
Balance as at Balance as at

December Purchase / Sale/ December

31, 2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31, 2013
Leasehold rights 27,635,771.22 - - 27,585771.22
Less Accumulated amortization (21,240,651.92)  (2,065,162.65) - (23,305,814.57)
Net 6,295,119.30  (2,065,162.65) - 4,229,956.65

Amortization as shown in statements of comprehensive income for the years
periods ended December 31, 2014 2,065,162.65
periods ended December 31, 2013 2,359,387.04

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the company pledged a leasehold rights which has original value of Baht
9.90 Million with book value of Baht 3.97 Million and original value of Baht 12.08 Million with book value of
Baht 4.45 Million, as collateral for the credit facility from commercial banks and finance institutions in the

notes 23.
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21. Intangible asset-net

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at

December Purchase / Sale/ December

31,2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31,2014
Application Program 4,873,186.94 343370.14 - 5,216,557.08
Cost of Accounting System Design 360,000.00 - - 360,000.00
Total cost 5,233,186.94 343370.14 - 5,576,557.08
Less Accumulated amortization (4,905,262.72) (120164.39) - (5,025,427.11)
Net 327,924.22 551,129.97

Amortization as shown in statements of comprehensive income for the years

periods ended December 31, 2014 120,164.39
periods ended December 31, 2013 72,596.43
(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

Balance as at Balance as at

December Purchase / Sale/ December

31,2013 Transfer in Transfer out 31,2014
Application Program 4,822,486.94 324,315.00 - 5,146,801.94
Cost of Accounting System Design 360,000.00 - - 360,000.00
Total cost 5,182,486.94 324,315.00 - 5,506,801.94
Less Accumulated amortization (4,885,774.94) (109,826.01) - (4,995,600.95)
Net 296,712.00 511,200.99

Amortization as shown in statements of comprehensive income for the years
periods ended December 31, 2014 109,826.01
periods ended December 31, 2013 70,040.59

22. Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows :

(Unit : Baht)
As at December 31, 2014 As at December 31, 2013
Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities Net assets liabilities Net
Deferred tax assets 6,406,647.37 (946,167.05) 5,460,480.32 3,306,590.32 (516,037.90) 2,790,552.42
Deferred tax liabilities 38,876,128.25 (83,638,603.16)  (44,762,474.91) 36,194,917.86  (68,961,942.56) (32,767,024.70)
Net 45,282,775.62 (84,584,770.21)  (39,301,994.59) 39,501,508.18  (69,477,980.46) (29,976,472.28)
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(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at December 31, 2014 As at December 31, 2013

Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax

assets liabilities Net assets liabilities Net

Deferred tax assets 38,876,128.25 (53,973,606.45)  (15,097,478.20)  36,194,917.86  (47,116,107.46) (10,921,189.60)

Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

were as follows:

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Changing increase/(decrease)
Other
As at December | Subsidiary as at comprehensive | As at December
31, 2013 acquisition date Profit or loss income 31, 2014
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for diminution in value of
inventories 5,164,706.30 178,518.99 5,343,225.29
Allowance for diminution in value of
Land and improvement 428,996.53 = 428,996.53
Liabilities by contract of financial leased 27,462.39 38,391.15 65,853.54
Employee benefit obligations 955,976.80 282,630.60 1,238,607.40
Cost of real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement 30,099,650.57 2,196,967.05 32,296,617.62
Loss carry forward 2,824,715.59 3,084,759.65 5,909,475.24
Total 39,501,508.18 - 5,781,267.44 - 45,282,775.62
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Changing increase/(decrease)
Other
As at December | Subsidiary as at comprehensive | As at December
31,2013 acquisition date Profit or loss income 31,2014
Deferred tax liabilities
Revenue from real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement 47,116,107.46 6,857,498.99 53,973,606.45
Employee benefit obligations
Cost of real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement 516,037.90 430,129.15 946,167.05
Additional assets from the
acquisition of subsidiaries 21,845,835.10 9,065,400.00  (1,246,238.39) 29,664,996.71
Total 69,477,980.46 9,065,400.00 6,041,389.75 - 84,584,770.21
Net (29,976,472.28)  (9,065,400.00) (260,122.31) - (39,301,994.59)
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Separate financial statements

Changing increase/(decrease)

(Unit : Baht)

Other
As at December comprehensive | As at December
31,2013 Profit or loss income 31,2014
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories 5,164,706.30 178,518.99 - 5,343,225.29
Liabilities by contract of financial leased 27,462.39 38,391.15 = 65,853.54
Employee benefit obligations 903,098.60 267,333.20 - 1,170,431.80
Cost of real estate project for rental under financial
lease agreement : 30,099,650.57 2,196,967.05 - 32,296,617.62
Total 36,194,917.86 2,681,210.39 - 38,876,128.25
Deferred tax liabilities
Revenue from real estate project for rental under
financial lease agreement 47,116,107.46 6,857,498.99 = 53,973,606.45
Total 47,116,107.46 6,857,498.99 - 53,973,606.45
Net (10,921,189.60)  (4,176,288.60) - (15,097,478.20)
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Changing increase/(decrease)

Other
As at January | Subsidiary as at comprehensive | As at December
1,2013 acquisition date Profit or loss income 31,2013
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for diminution in value
of inventories 5,375,244.28 (210,537.98) - 5,164,706.30
Allowance for diminution in value of
Land and improvement - 536,245.66 (107,249.13) - 428,996.53
Liabilities by contract of financial leased 19,419.08 8,043.31 - 27,462.39
Employee benefit obligations 684,107.80 50,002.80 221,866.20 - 955,976.80
Cost of real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement 21,782,933.76 8,316,716.81 - 30,099,650.57
Loss carry forward 2,457,616.19 2,079,750.81  (1,712,651.41) - 2,824,715.59
Total 30,319,321.11 2,665,999.27 6,516,187.80 - 39,501,508.18
Deferred tax liabilities
Revenue from real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement 29,779,070.55 17,337,036.91 - 47,116,107.46
Employee benefit obligations
Cost of real estate project for rental
under financial lease agreement - 403,459.92 112,577.98 - 516,037.90
Additional assets from the acquisition
of subsidiaries - 22,156,541.11 (310,706.01) - 21,845,835.10
Total 29,779,070.55 22,560,001.03  17,138,908.88 - 69,477,980.46
Net 540,250.56  (19,894,001.76)  (10,622,721.08) - (29,976,472.28)
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(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

Changing increase/(decrease)
Other
As at January comprehensive | As at December
1, 2013 Profit or loss income 31,2013
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories 5,375,244.28 (210,537.98) - 5,164,706.30
Liabilities by contract of financial leased 19,419.08 8,043.31 - 27,462.39
Employee benefit obligations 684,107.80 218,990.80 - 903,098.60
Cost of real estate project for rental under financial
lease agreement 21,782,933.76 8,316,716.81 - 30,099,650.57
Loss carry forward 2,457,616.19 (2,457,616.19) - -
Total 30,319,321.11 5,875,596.75 - 36,194,917.86
Deferred tax liabilities
Revenue from real estate project for rental under
financial lease agreement 29,779,070.55  17,337,036.91 - 47,116,107.46
Total 29,779,070.55 17,337,036.91 - 47,116,107.46
Net 540,250.56 (11,461,440.16) - (10,921,189.60)

23. Restricted bank deposit
Parent company

As at December 31, 2014, the Company has received credit facilities from 8 financial institutions, consisted of
credit facility for letter of credit and trust receipt of Baht 1,437.43 Million, for promissory note of Baht 550
Million, for foreign exchange forward contract of Baht 530.00 Million, for bank guarantee of Baht 60.00 Million,
for bank overdraft account of Baht 52.20 Million, for factoring of Baht 200.00 Million and credit card from
management Baht 3.00 Million. These credit facilities were guaranteed by the collateral as specified in notes

No.19 and 20.

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has received credit facilities from 8 financial institutions, consisted of
credit facility for letter of credit and trust receipt of Baht 1,467.80 Million, for promissory note of Baht 600.00
Million, for foreign exchange forward contract of Baht 530.00 Million, for bank guarantee of Baht 10.00 Million,
for bank overdraft account of Baht 52.20 Million, for factoring of Baht 200.00 Million and credit card from
management Baht 3.00 Million. These credit facilities were guaranteed by the collateral as specified in notes

No.19 and 20.
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24. Bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Bank overdrafts = 982834.40 =
Short-term loans from trust receipt 849,339,034.71 1,047,756,627.97 = 849,339,034.71 1,047,756,627.97
Short-term loans from promissory note 160,000,000.00 835,724,705.00  160,000,000.00 835,724,705.00
Total 1,009,339,034.71 1,884,464,167.37 1,009,339,034.71 1,883,481,332.97
Parent company
(Unit : Baht)

As at December 31,

Aging (month) Interest rate 2014 2013
Short-term loans from trust receipt 1-5 2.35-8.125 849,339,034.71 1,047,756,627.97
Short-term loans from promissory note 1-4 4.93 - 6.48 160,000,000.00 835,724,705.00
Total 1,009,339,034.71 1,883,481,332.97
Subsidiary company
(Unit : Baht)

As at December 31,

Aging (month) Interest rate 2014 | 2013

Bank overdrafts - 7.50 - 982,834.40

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, bank overdrafts, trust receipt and promissory notes as mentioned above

corresponding collateral as in accordance as disclosed in the notes 23.

25. Other current liabilities

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Accrued corporate income taxes 12,004,360.06 9,061,071.58 10,847,034.42 8,390,200.43
Accrued expense 19,491,280.54 15,578,788.04 11,728,125.15 11,282,765.05
Others 22,047,455.73 18,134,827.68 18,894,181.00 14,511,327.01
Total 53,543,096.33  42,774,687.30  41,469,340.57  34,184,292.49
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26. Long-term loans-net
(Unit : Baht)
As at December 31, As at December 31,
204 | 2013 2014 | 2013
Loan (Credit line of Baht 6.00 Million) - 396,774.02 - -
Loan (Credit line of Baht 44.00 Million) = 24,911,280.00 = -
Total - 25,308,054.02 - -
Less Current portion of long-term loans - (396,774.02) - -
Net - 24,911,280.00 - -
Changes of long-term loans for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows :
(Unit : Baht)
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2014 | 2013 2014 | 2018
Beginning balance 25,308,054.02 - = -
Add  Subsidiary as at acquisition date - 21,095,302.97 - -
Received loans during the year 11,129,270.00 4,590,637.00 - -
Less Repayment loans during the year (36,437,324.02) (377,885.95) - -

Ending balance

- 25,308,054.02 - -

Subsidiary company

The subsidiary company has long-term loan of two credit lines from financial institutions as follows :

Contract No.1

The principal of Baht 6 Million line of credit is to be repaid within 60 months through Baht 0.13 Million
installment which is subjected to MLR+0.50% per annum interest. The first installment is due after
1 month of the first drawndown. The next installment will be due on every 1 month afterward. This line

of credit is guaranteed by company’s directors and company’s assets.
Contract No.2

This line of credit is granted for payment for constructionand utility system. The principal of Baht 44
Million line of credit is to be repaid within 30 installments the first to fourteen installment are grace
period to repay principle, the fifteen to thirty installment to repay not less than Baht 2.75 million per
month The inrest rate of MLR+1.00% per annum. The payment must be made within each month,
repay installment principle since the fifteen installment and repay interest since the first withdraw loan.
This line of credit is guaranteed by company’s directors and leasehold right of land and Building

improvement and transfer benefitiary of its insurance contract.
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27. Liabilities by contract of financial leased-net

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

/Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 2013
Less than 1 year = 29,504.00
More than 1 year up to 5 years -
Total - 29,504.00
Less Interest payment in the future liabilities under financial lease agreement = (258.61)
Current portion of liabilities under financial lease agreement - (29,245.39)

Net

28. Rental for real estate recognized under financial lease agreement-net

Consolidated financial statements

As at December 31,

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Rental for real estate recognized under
financial lease agreement 197,432,737.00 203,877,322.00 95,866,192.00  98,995,449.00
Less Deferred interest expenses (116,395,355.66) (117,685,207.52)  (57,696,898.90) (58,398,233.12)
Current portion of rental for real estate recognized
under financial lease agreement (5,046,539.93) (5,154,733.14) (2,376,963.07) (2,427,922.78)
Net 75,990,841.41 81,037,381.34 35,792,330.08  38,169,293.10

The aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancelable leases agreements as follows :

As at December 31,

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 | 2013 2014 | 2013
Less than 1 year 6,766,814.00 6,444,585.00 3,285,720.00 3,129,257.00
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 30,624,107.00  29,165,816.00 14,869,958.00  14,161,865.00
More than 5 years 160,041,816.00 168,266,921.00 77,710,514.00  81,704,327.00
Total 197,432,737.00 203,877,322.00 95,866,192.00  98,995,449.00
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29. Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations are as follow :

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statements statements

Employee benefit obligations as at January 1, 2013 3,420,539.00 3,420,539.00
Add  Subsidiary as at acquisition date 250,014.00 -
Employee benefit durring the year 985,694.00 973,214.00
Financial cost (interest) durring the year 1,236,370.00 121,740.00
Employee benefit obligations as at December 31, 2013 4,779,884.00 4,515,493.00
Add  Employee benefit durring the year 1,242,757.00 1,175,970.00
Financial cost (interest) durring the year 170,396.00 160,696.00
Employee benefit obligations as at December 31, 2014 6,193,037.00 5,852,159.00

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, amounted to Baht 1.41 Million and Baht 1.11 Million,
respectively and the company statements of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2014

and 2013, amounted to Baht 1.34 Million and Baht 1.09 Million, respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows :

(Unit : Percentage)

Parent company Subsidiary

Annual discount rate 3.56 3.67
Annual salary increase rate 5 5
Retirement age 55 year 55 year

Amounts of defined benefit obligation for the current and previous periods are as follows:

(Unit : Baht)

Defined benefit obligation

Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statements statements

Year 2014 6,193,037.00 5,852,159.00
Year 2013 4,779,884.00 4,515,493.00
Year 2012 3,420,539.00 3,420,539.00
Year 2011 1,691,345.00 1,691,345.00
Year 2010 1,447,573.00 1,447,573.00
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30. Share capital

As at December 31, 2014

Consolidated financial statements / Separate financial statements

As at December 31, 2013

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(Shares) (Baht) (Shares) (Baht)

Registered share capital
Beginning ordinary share 3,428,571,436  342,857,143.60 3,000,000,000 300,000,000.00
Add  Increased ordinary shares 4,090,000,003 409,000,000.30 1,028,571,431 102,857,143.10
Less Decreased ordinary share (10,225) (1,022.50) (599,999,995)  (59,999,999.50)
Ending ordinary shares 7,5618,561,214  751,856,121.40 3,428,571,436  342,857,143.60
Issued and paid-up share capital
Beginning ordinary shares 2,400,000,005 240,000,000.50 2,400,000,005 240,000,000.50
Add  Increased ordinary shares 3,833,656,262 383,365,626.20 -
Total ordinary shares 6,233,656,267 623,365,626.70 2,400,000,005 240,000,000.50

Parent company

Accordance with the minutes of board of directors meeting no. 7/2014 dated November 13, 2014, it was

resolved to allocated new common shares not exceeding 719,268,031 shares to the existing shareholders of

the company based on the ratio of 26 existing shares to 3 new shares. The offered price is Baht 0.55 per

share with par value of Baht 0.10 per share. The subcription and payment date are between 18 to 24

December 2014. In during December 2014, the Company recieved Baht 0.59 million of advance payment for

share subscription. New shares are registered with the Ministry of Commerce in 6 January 2015.

In accordance with the minutes of the annual general shareholders’ meeting for the year 2014, held on April

18, 2014, it was unanimously as follows :

(1)

Approved decrease registered capital of the company from Baht 342,857,143.60 to Baht
342,856,121.10 by writing off 10,225 unissued shares at a par value of Baht 0.10, totaling Baht
1,022.50. Noted that the unissued shares to be written off is registered to cover thte warrants

(TWZ-W2).

To amend the Company Memorandum of Association No.4 in order to conform with the decrease in

registered share.

Approval of the issuance of 400,000,001 units of warrants (TWZ-W3) to be offered to the existing
shareholders to subscribe for new ordinary shares of theCompany according the proportion to

subscribe.

Approval increase registered share by Baht 409,000,000.30 composing of 4,090,000,003 common
shares with par value of Baht 0.10 per share. Hence, registered share will be increased from
Baht 342,856,121.10 to Baht 751,856,121.40 composing of 7,518,561,214 common shares with par

value of Baht 0.10 per share.
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To amend the Company Memorandum of Association No.4 in order to conform with the increase in

registered share.

Approval of the allocation of 4,090,000,003 new ordinary shares. As follows :

- Allocation of shares of not more than 800,000,002 shares at par value of Baht 0.10 per share
to existing shareholders in proportion.

- Allocation of shares by General Mandate of not more than 720,000,000 shares at par value of
Baht 0.10 per share to be offered to existing shareholders in proportion.

- Allocation of shares of not more than 400,000,001 shares at par value of Baht 0.10 per share
for the exercise of warrants to purchase common stock of the Company (TWZ-W3).

- The allocation of new shares of not more than 2,000,000,000 shares in whole or partly at once
or several times to specific investors and/or institutional investors (Investors) which a private
placement.

- Allocation of shares of not more than 170,000,000 shares reserved for the exercise price and

exercise ratio of the warrants TWZ-W2.

From minutes of the extra-ordinary shareholders’ meeting no.1/2013 held on August 26, 2013, the following

agendas were proposed for approval :

(1)

To decrease registered capital of the company from Baht 300,000,000.00 to Baht 240,000,000.50 by
writing off 599,999,995 unissued shares at a par value of Baht 0.10, totaling Baht 59,999,999.50.
Noted that the unissued shares to be written off is registered to cover the warrants (TWZ-W1) issued
to existing shareholders based on thier shareholding proportion. The warrants are expired on 25 May

2011.

To amend the Company Memorandum of Association No.4 in order to conform with the decrease in

registered share.

To issue 1,028,571,431 units of warrants (TWZ-W2) for existing shareholders at the ratio of 3 warrants

per 7 common shares, with exercise price of Baht 0.40 per share.

To increase registered share by Baht 102,857,143.10 composing of 1,028,571,431 common shares
with par value of Baht 0.10 per share. Hence, registered share will be increased from Baht
240,000,000.50 to Baht 342,857,143.60 composing of 3,428,571,436 common shares with par value

of Baht 0.10 per share.

To amend the Company Memorandum of Association No.4 in order to conform with the increase in

registered share.

To issue 1,028,571,431 common shares to cover upcoming exercise of warrant (TWZ-W2) granted to
existing shareholders at the ratio of 3 warrants per 7 common shares, with exercise price of Baht 0.40

per share.

To approve purchase 49,998 shares of Piyachart Co., Ltd., representing 100% of registered share
capital, from former shareholders which are RT Holding Co., Ltd. and Bangkok Forest Co., Ltd. at Baht
120 Million.

www.twz.co.th

221



222

31.

32.

Dividend payment and legal reserve
Parent company

Accordance with the minutes of the board of directors of the company meeting no.6/2014, dated September
15, 2014 the company was unanimously approved to pay THB 0.00636 tolally amount Baht 39.64 Million,
dividend based on the operating profit of the six-month period ended June 30, 2014. The payment date was

October 13, 2014.

Accordance with the minutes of the annual general shareholders’ meeting for the year 2014, held on April 18,
2014, it was resolved to appropisted legal reserve amount Baht 4.14 Million from the company’s performance
operation for the year 2013 and resolved to pay dividend of Baht 0.015 per share, totally amount Baht 36.00
Million. The dividend is determined to be payable on May 15, 2014.

At annual shareholders’ meeting no.1/2013 on April 19, 2013, it was resolved that the company will not pay
dividend from 2012 earnings due to earnings are not high enough to do so. The board of director considers

reserving 2012 earnings for operation.

Warrants

Parent company

As at

December 31, 2014| December 31, 2013

32.1 Warrant (TWZ-W2)

Total right of warrants 1,028,571,431 1,028,571,431

Exercise right of warrants balance forward =

Less Exercise right of warrants during the year (1,006,491,713)
Exercise right of warrants balance ended (1,006,491,713)
Net total right of warrants 22,079,718 1,028,571,431

TWZ-W2 remaining warrants in number of 22.08 unit Million which expired from listed on the Stock

Exchange of Thailand since September 12, 2014 and can not converted to ordinary share capital.

32.2 As disclose in note no. 30 shareholders approved the issuance of Warrant no.3 (TWZ-W3),number of

400,000,001 unit. The detail of each warrants can be described as follow : Warrant no.3 (TWZ-W3)

- Holder (Name) specified and transferable
- Listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
- Term of Warrants 3 years from the issuing date (from June 23, 2014)

- Issue and Offering Date June 23,2014
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- Exercise Period the warrant holders shall exercise their rights under the warrants in the total of

3 times are the date of December 30, 2015, on December 30, 2016 and June 22, 2017 by that

date will be the last exercise date.

- Exercised Ratio 1 warrant can be exercised to purchase 1 common share.

- Exercised Price Baht 0.30 per share, par value Baht 0.10 per share.

As at 31 December 2014, the company changed strike price and conversion ratio of its warrant,

TWZ-W3 as follow:

- New conversion ratio is 1 warrant to 1.003 common share

- New exercise price is Baht 0.299 per share with par value of Baht 0.10

33. Others income

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,

2004 | 2013 | 2014 | 2013

Interest income from financial lease agreement
Interest income

Others income

4,514,272.79 4,288,743.96 4,514,272.79 4,288,743.96
6,272,869.82 6,625,860.45 6,220,140.23 6,615,960.69
6,506,482.64 4,118,034.98 5,469,589.17 3,550,280.67

Total

17,293,625.25  15,032,639.39 16,204,002.19  14,454,985.32

34. Finance cost

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,

2004 | 2003 | 2014 | 2013

Bank charge

Finance cost

3,647,909.25 4,161,280.51 3,647,909.25 4,161,280.51

86,268,108.98  99,045,915.74 82,483,492.76  98,085,554.80

Total

89,916,018.23  103,207,196.25 86,131,402.01 102,246,835.31
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35. Income tax expense

Corporate income tax was calculated on profit before income tax for the year, using the estimated effective

tax rate for the year as follows :

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
For the years ended December 31,
2004 | 2013 | 2014 | 2013

Current income tax :

Interim corporate income tax charge

Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statements

of comprehensive income

21,066,560.53  11,894,098.02 20,378,085.50  11,880,542.92

260,122.31 10,622,721.08 4,176,288.60  11,461,440.16

21,326,682.84  22,516,819.10 24,554,374.10  23,341,983.08

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,
2014 | 2013 | 2014 | 2018

Accounting profit (loss) before tax

Add loss accounting of some subsidiary

139,897,009.09 102,206,421.80  126,082,059.12 106,060,429.76
248,913.17 67,870.99 =

Accounting profit (loss) before tax-net

140,145,922.26  102,274,292.79 = 126,082,059.12 106,060,429.76

Applicable tax rate
Accounting profit (loss) before tax multiplied by applicable
tax rate
Effects of :
Tax exempted revenue and tax exempted revenue
Income tax expense reported in the statements of

comprehensive income

15.00 - 20.00%  16.50 - 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%

21,818,282.39  20,370,619.39 25216,411.82  21,212,085.95

(491,599.55) 2,146,199.71 (662,037.72) 2,129,897.13

21,326,682.84  22,516,819.10 = 24,554,374.10  23,341,983.08

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the group company has accumulated tax loss amounting to Baht 5.61

Million and Baht 0.07 Million respectively ,the company has not recognised those tax losses as deferred tax

assets since the management assesses that there are economical uncertainties on future operating

performance. This, the comany will recognise the deferred tax assets from tax loss when actual tax obligation

incurred.
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36. Basic earnings per share / diluted earnings per share

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

For the years ended December 31,

2014 | 2013 | 2014 | 2013
Basic earnings per share
Net profit attributable to equity holders 118,570,326.25  79,689,602.70 = 101,527,685.02  82,718,446.68
of the parent company (Unit : Baht)
Weighted average number of ordinary 3,931,166,105  2,400,000,005 3,931,166,105  2,400,000,005
shares in issue (Unit : Share)
Basic earnings per share (Baht per share) 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03

Diluted earning per share for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows ;

For the year ended

December 31, 2014

Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statements statements

Diluted earning per share
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company (Unit : Baht) 118,570,326.25 101,527,685.02
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (Unit : share) 3,931,166,105 3,931,166,105
Efffect of dilutive potential ordinary share - Warrant - Shareholders 137,305,720 137,305,720
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earning per share (Unit : share) 4,068,471,825  4,068,471,825
Profit of ordinary shareholders by assumption the conversion of warrants to ordinary shares
(Unit : Baht per share) 0.03 0.02

There is no dilutive effect of ordinary share in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

since the exercise price of warrants was higher than the average market price for the periods.

37. Presentation of finance data segregated by business sector

Segment information is presented in respect of the company’s business segment. The primary format,

business segments is based on the company’s management and internal reporting structure.

Segment assets and revenues include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be

allocated on a reasonable basis.
Business segments

The company comprises of two business segments that are communication equipment trading segment and

real estate development segment.
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Information relating to business segments, in the company’s financial statements for the years ended

December 31, 2014 and 2013, were as follows:

226

(Unit : Baht)
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Communication Real estate
equipment trading|  development
segment segment Total
Revenues
Domestic 4,080,988,305.35 45,615,164.37 4,126,603,469.72
Foreign 4,831,733.06 - 4,831,733.06
Total revenues 4,085,820,038.41 45,615,164.37 4,131,435,202.78
Interest income 6,227,275.93 4,559,866.67  10,787,142.60
Finance costs 82,582,731.74 7,333,286.49  89,916,018.23
Depreciation and amortization 6,955,976.67 10,713,355.70 17,669,332.37
Profit (loss) from continuing operations 105,190,778.60 34,706,230.49  139,897,009.09
Income tax expenses 20,376,270.89 950,411.95  21,326,682.84

(Unit : Baht)
For the year ended December 31, 2013
Communication Real estate
equipment trading|  development
segment segment Total
Revenues
Domestic 3,854,813,703.60 95,643,356.78 3,950,457,060.38
Foreign 24,704,176.18 - 24,704,176.18
Total revenues 3,879,517,879.78 95,643,356.78 3,975,161,236.56
Interest income 6,616,376.04 4,298,228.37 10,914,604.41
Finance costs 98,704,192.94 4,503,003.31  103,207,196.25
Depreciation and amortization 8,466,230.86 2,320,520.52 10,786,751.38

Profit (loss) from continuing operations

Income tax expenses
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(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Communication equipment trading

segment

Real estate development segment

Total

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

2014 2013

2014 2013

2014 2013

Segmental assets

3,033,317,031.38 2,603,442,197.37

524,922,881.18  436,045,022.08 3,558,239,912.56 3,039,487,219.45

38.

Information about main client

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 the group company has revenues from client of
communication equipment trading segment and real estate development segment amounts four clients
(2013 : amount five clients) representing 55.72 percent (2013 : 75.62 percent) of the total revenues of the

group company.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments means any contract which makes assets in finance of a business affairs and liabilities in
finance or capital instrument of a business affairs increase at the same time. The company has no policy to
operate about transaction in financial derivative instrument in order to expect in term of profit or trade and the

company has the risk instruments which has the main list as follows :
38.1 Credit risk

Credit risk means the risk that the party of the one part will be unable to execute according to
commitments, which is specified with financial instruments and it makes the party of other part

damage in term of finance.

The company has the credit risk related to account receivable which the company has several and
various customers. However, the company has a comprehensive loan policy which required guarantee
for large loans, thus the company expects no significant damage from collecting debt of such
account receivable. The company also estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts based on the
management appraisal regarding the account receivables debt service ability in the past which the

management believes it is sufficient.

38.2 Foreign currency risk

The company’s exposure to foreign currency risk because relates to its accounts assets and liabilities
which are not hedged by derivative financial instruments, however the management of the company

believed that does not effect significantly to the financial statement.
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As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the company’s net foreign currency assets and liabilities that

were not hedged by derivative financial instruments were as follows :

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As at December 31, As at December 31,
Currency 2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalent CNY 50,400.62 34,431.23 6,705.99 198.08
Advance payments HKD - - - 12,153.02
Financial liabilities
Advance receipts HKD = - 12,000.00 5,880.00
Trade accounts payable usb 738,620.00 - 738,620.00 -
Trust receipts usbD 2,900,024.00 916,216.00 2,900,024.00 916,216.00
Obligation
Letter of credit usb 2,764,800.00 757,720.00 2,764,800.00 757,720.00
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38.4 Fair value

Financial assets and liabilities have the prices according to the lists, which close to current market rate
because these financial instruments will due in the short term including the loans from other
companies, which has the interest rate close to current market condition, it makes such financial

instruments and liabilities reflect the fair value already.

39. Obigations commitment and contigent liabilities

The company has obigations commitment and contigent liabilities as follows :

39.1 Apart from liabilities as shown in financial statements, the company still has an obligation as follows :

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

As at December 31, As at December 31,
Currency 2014 | 2018 2014 | 2013
Letter of guarantee BHT  49,008435.00 42,95599500  42,955995.00  42,955995.00
Letter of credit usD 2,764,800.00 757,720.00  2,764,800.00 757,720.00

39.2 Obligations as long-term lease agreement

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013 the company entered into 58 long - term lease agreements and
69 long - term lease agreements respectively, with various durations from 1 to 25 years whereas the

company holds rights to renew such contract.

The aggregate minimum amount of lease payments in the future under non-cancellable leases
agreements and services agreements are as follows :
(Unit : Baht)
Separate financial statements

As at December 31,

2014 | 2013
Less than 1 year 15,633,5611.84  19,116,658.68
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 18,264,866.44 9,312,684.76
More than 5 years 726,616.68 1,052,014.78
Total 34,624,994.96 29,481,358.22

39.3 Obligation the future aggregate construction
Parent company

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013 the company had obligation the future aggregate construction

payments under construction agreements Baht 2.92 Million and Baht 2.34 Million respectivery.
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Subsidiary company

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the company had obligation the future aggregate construction
payments under construction agreements Baht 7.21 Million and Baht 42.78 Million
Foreign exchange forward contract

The company had policy to decrease any risks on foreign exchange rate, which occurred from sale on

goods and payment by hedging forward contract from financial institutions as follows :

Consolidated
financial statements

/Separate
financial statements

Currency As at
(Million) December 31,2014

Value of foreign exchange forward contract usD 0.15

Gain of fair value of foreign exchange contract BHT 0.05

40. Important Contract and Agreement

40.1

40.2

40.3

The distributor appointment contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd.

As of September 9, 2002, the company entered into the contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd. The
company was appointed as “distributor agent” of mobile phone sim card of digital GSM 1800 system,
instant set of mobile phone accessories including any products which will be additionally determined

during the contract life while the contract is effective from the contractual date onwards.

The service center operating agent contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd.

As of December 1, 2002, the company entered into the contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd. Both
parties agreed that the company was “Service Provider” of after sale service, who was providing the
maintenance, repair, inspection and distribution of equipment spare parts and additional services for
mobile phone and equipments whereas the company would be informed from time by time during this
contract life. This contract would last for the period of 1 year commenced from the contractual date. In
case there was no breach of covenants during the contractual term; then, by the end of contract, there
was no termination from Digital Phone Co., Ltd. so, this contract is further enforceable for another

1 year commend from the date the contract is due in each time.

The contract to grant the right to sell products and service

As of August 10, 2004, the company received right in accordance with the contract to grant right to
sell products and service from Advance Info Service Public Co., Ltd.. Whereby Advance Info Service
Public Co., Ltd. agreed that the company receives right and various privileges in the system of product
distribution, service rendered, compensation in the receipt of service repayment and register and the
receipt of mobile phone service fee and other compensations in accordance with the basis, term and
rate which Advance Info Service Public Co., Ltd. is determined and this contract is enforceable from

January 1, 2001, onwards.
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Moreover, the company operates its business apart from the contract of the right granted to sell
products and such service. However, the company received a confirm letter from right granter that the
company business operation is not breach the term in accordance with the contract of such right

granted.

41. Provident fund

The company has established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 1987. The
fund is contributed by both employees and the company in the rate of 2% of salary. The fund is managed by
the AIA Provident fund and will be paid to an employee upon termination in accordance with the rules of the

company’s staff provident fund.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the company contribution is repayable to the provident

fund Baht 0.46 Million and Baht 0.44 Million, respectively.

42. Capital management

The primary objectives of the company’s capital management are to maintain their abilities to continue as a

going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.

43. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements have been approved by the company’s director on February 27, 2015.
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